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CHAIR 
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DISTRICT 3 
DISTRICT 4 

• 248-5220 
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Tuesday, April 23, 1991 - 9:30 AM 
Multnomah county Courthouse, Room 602 

PLANNING ITEMS 

• 248-3277 

The Following April 1, 1991 Decisions 
Commission are Reported to the Board for 
Implementation by Board Order: 

of the Planning 
Acceptance and 

1. PO 1-91 APPROVE, SUBJECT TO 
Change in Zone Designation From 
District to RR, P-D, 
Planned-Development District; 

CONDITIONS, Requested 
RR, Rural Residential 
Rural Residential, 

LD 7-91 APPROVE, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, Request for a 
13-Lot single Family Residential Land Division, all for 
Property Located at 5055 East Powell Boulevard 

ACCEPI'ED. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
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Tuesday, April 23, 1991 - 9:30 AM 
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602 

PLANNING ITEMS 

• 248-3277 

The Following April 1, 1991 Decisions of the Planning 
Commission are Reported to the Board of County Commissioners for 
Acknowledgement by the Presiding Officer: 

2. CS 2-91 APPROVE, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, Modification of 
the Community Service Designation of the Described 
Property to Allow up to a Maximum of 16 On-Site Residents 
Plus 4 Temporarily Housed on an Occasional Basis, for 
Property Located at 14917-15005 SE Division Street 

ACKNOWLEDGED. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
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Tuesday, April 23, 1991 - 9:30 AM 
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602 

PLANNING ITEMS 

• 248-3277 

The Following April 1, 1991 Decisions of the Planning 
commission are Reported to the Board of County Commissioners 
Acknowledgement by the Presiding Officer: 

3. CU 5-91 APPROVE, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, Conditional Use 
Request to Allow Development of the Subject Property with 
a Non-Resource Related Single Family Residence, for 
Property Located at 6175 NW Thompson Road 

ACKNOWLEDGED. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
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4. 

Tuesday, April 23, 1991 - 9:30 AM 
Multnomah county Courthouse, Room 602 

PLANNING ITEMS 

• 248-3277 

RB 1-91 RESOLUTION in the Matter of Issuance of an 
Industrial Development Revenue Bond State of Oregon to 
Lincoln & Allen Bindery 

TESTIMONY HEARD. RESOLUTION 91-54 APPROVED. 

AN EOUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
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5. C 2-91 First Reading and Possible Adoption of an 
ORDINANCE Amending the Multnomah County Code Chapter 
11. 15 by Amending Regulations Applicable to Grading and 
Filling Activities, and Clarifying Standards Applicable 
to Land Disturbing Activities within the Tualatin River 
Drainage Basin, and Declaring an Emergency 

TESTIMONY HEARD. ORDINANCE 677 
STAFF TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT 
ORDINANCE FOR PROTECTION OF THE 
AREA AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

APPROVED. 
A PROPOSED 
BALCH CREEK 
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6. C 3-91a First Reading of an ORDINANCE Amending the 
Mul tnomah County Code Chapter 11. 15 by Restricting the 
Planned Development Subdistrict to the Urban and RC, RR 
and MUA-20 Rural Districts 

TESTIMONY HEARD. FIRST READING APPROVED. 
SECOND READING SCHEDULED FOR TUESDAY, APRIL 30, 
1991. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
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7. 

Tuesday, April 23, 1991 - 9:30 AM 
Multnomah County Courthouse, Room 602 

PLANNING ITEMS 

• 248-3277 

Business Certificate Application/Renewal Submitted by 
Planning Office with Recommendation for Approval as 
Follows: 
Division Street Auto Parts U-Pull-It Division, 13231 SE 
Division, Portland (Continued from March 28, 1991) 

CONTINUED TO TUESDAY, APRIL 30, 1991. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
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BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Tuesday, April 23, 1991 

9:30 a.m., Room 602 

AGENDA 

The following Decisions are reported to the Board for acceptance and implemen­
tation by Board Order: 

PD 1-91 

LD 7-91 

Approve, subject to conditions requested change in zone designation 
from RR, rural residential district to RR, P-D, rural residential, planned­
development district; 
Approve, subject to conditions, request for a 13-lot single family resi­
dential land division, all for property located at 5055 East Powell Blvd. 

The following Decisions are reported to the Board for acknowledgement by the 
Presiding Officer: 

cs 2-91 

cu 5-90 

Approve, subject to conditions, modification of the Community 
Service designation of the described property to allow up to a maximum 
of 16 on-site residents plus 4 temporarily housed on an occasional basis, 
for property located at 14917-15005 SE Division Street 

Approve, subject to conditions, conditional use request to allow devel­
opment of the subject property with a non-resource related single family 
residence, for property located at 6175 NW Thompson Road. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 



Other Items for Board Action: 

RB 1-91 

c 2-91 

C 3-91a 

In the Matter of Issuance of an Industrial Development Revenue Bond 
State of Oregon to Lincoln and Allen Bindery, located at 3033 NW Yeon 
Street. 

A proposed Ordinance amendment to MCC Chapter 11.15 regarding 
Erosion Control Provisions and Tualatin River Drainage Basin 
Regulations for Stormwater Runoff and Protection of Streams and 
Drainage ways 

(First Reading) 

A proposed Ordinance amendment to MCC Chapter 11.15 to restrict 
application of the Planned-Development Subdistrict to the urban and RC, 
RR and MUA-20 rural zoning districts 

(First Reading) 

Auto Wrecker's License - Renewal 

Submitted to the Board with recommendation that same be approved: 

Division Street Auto Parts 
U-Pull It Division 
13231 SE Division Street 

This item was before the Board on March 28, 1991 and continued to this date for 
additional information. 

Board of County Commissioners' Agenda Continued 
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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
.!La.II.LU.JL.IL.IL& and Development 

S..E. Morrison Street 
(508) 248-8048 

cu 5-91, #125 Conditional Use 
(Non-Resoun:e ReliatE!d ~.me:ae Family Residence) 

'"' ...... , ... .u~ requests conditional use 
a 3.00 acre Lot of Kec:oro 

Location: 

Legal: 

Site Size: 

Size Requested: 

Property Owner: 

Applicant: 

3 acres 

Margaret 
sw 

Dan McKenzie 

Court, 

8150 SW Barnes Road, #0302, 97225 

Comprehensive Plan: Multiple 

Present Zoning: MUF-19, 
acres 

Planning Commission 
Decision: APPROVE, subject to "'"..,'11 '1"1,... ... ., development of this property with a 

non-resource related based on following 
t'indinJI.?;S and L:0£1C1US1011LS. 

cu 5-91 



I .. 

-1 

ITY ~ 

UF·I9 

Uf -19 

l ···- ... 1 
,CitJt 
L •.. 

(\' 

. .. ' 

44 

41 

.35 





CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. Prior to the issuance of building permits, the property owner sh~ll provide the Land 
Development Section with a copy of the recorded restrictions required under MCC 
ll.l5.2172(A)(5). A prepared blank copy of this deed restriction is available at the Land 
Development Offices. 

Satisfy the requirements of Engineering Services regarding any future improvements of 
or access to NW Thompson Road. 

3. Prior to any site clearing or grading, satisfy the conditions of approval of SEC 6-91 (see 
Appendix). Contact Mark Hess at 248-3043 for specific information. 

4. Prior to any site clearing or grading, obtain a Hillside Development and Erosion Control 
Permit pursuant to MCC 11.15.6710. Contact Mark at 248-3043 for specific infor-
mation. 

All land disturbing activities within 100-feet of Balch Creek authorized by SEC 6-91 
shall take place between June 15 and September 30 of any year. Any activity within 
100-feet of creek, including but not limited to the bridge and/or driveway, which 
exposes soil or disturbs the ground surface on the site between October 1 and June 14 is 
prohibited- unless required for emergency repairs. 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 

I. Applicant's Proposal: 

The applicant requests Planning Commission approval to develop the above described 
acre Lot of Record with a non-resource related single family dwelling. 

2. Ordinance Considerations: 

A. A non-resource related single family dwelling is 
a Conditional Use where it is demonstrated that: 

(1) The lot shall meet the standard of MCC 11.15.2178(A) or .2182(A) to (C). 

(2) The land is incapable of sustaining a farm or forest use, based upon one of the 
lowing: 

a) A Soil Conservation Service Agriculture Capability Class of IV or greater for at 
least 75% of the lot area, and physical conditions insufficient to produce 50 cubic 
feet/acre/year or any commercial trees species for at least 75% of the area; 

b) Certification by the Oregon State University Extension Service, the Oregon 
Department of Forestry, or a person or group having similar agricultural and 
forestry expertise, that the land is inadequate for farm and forest uses and stating 
the basis for the conclusions; or 

Decision 
April 1, 1991 4of9 cu 5-91 
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' 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

2115 SE MORRISON STREET 
PORTLAND, OREGON 9'1214 (503) 248-3043 

PLANNING DIRECTOR DECISION 
MARCH 22, 1991 

SEC 6-91 

SIGNIFICANT ENviRONMENTAL CoNCERN PERMIT 

(Construct a driveway will bridge 

requests approval an 
to provide access to a 

100-feet of a Class I 

Location: 

Legal: 

Property Owner: 

Applicant: 

Comprehensive Plan 

6125 
Portland 

Tax '1' 

Dan McKenzie 
8150 sw 
Portland, ..., .. ..,p;.,..., .. 

Designation: Multiple Use 

Present Zoning: MUF-19/SEC, 
tal Concern 

PLANNING DIRECTOR 

DECISION A 

Staff Contact Penon: 
Mark Hess: 248-3043 

APPROVED, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS, 

and Conclusions. 

SEC 6-91 



Conditions of Approval: 

1. 
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Findings of Fact: 

Site and Vicinity 

The subject property 
Thompson Road aP1:>rmurrtate:l) 
Road. It 
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access. 

SEC 6-91 



Development orcmo.sea 
must meet lU'\T\rn'"!l 

A. SEC Approval Criteria 

of the 

aesthetic enhance-
ment, open space or be provided between any use and a river, 
stream, lake, or floodwater storage area. 

{(Shoreline and 
enough of the vegetation to 
tion . ... I would rPnJIITI'Il 

rhododendron, uu'~'"v'u"'' 
ed in Balch Creek 
changes as J expect to build a 

Comment: 

(b) Agricultural/and 
farm and forest use. 
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wu.:u:::.:juc:; construc-
maple,fern, 

recommend-



est use. 

(c) The narvesl'lm! 
manner 
be maintained to 
brief period 

Comment: 
would be T"PrnrnTPr1 

#2 

ner 
flicts with areas 

Comment: 

(h) The natural v~>flr~>tniNVP 
hanced and protected 
ty, protection from "'r"" .... , ... 
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not remove 

no 

4 

or 

aman­
""'..,"'H+••n con-

on 

as most 

en­
assure scenic quali-
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Comment: 

(i) Buildings, ~rrJ'.u•n,vru~ 
protected, enhanced, r~~>c~uu•tPa 
lance to the County's 

Comment: 

erosion, "'*""'' ........ 
reclamation. 

(l) Areas 
retained in their natural 
quality and protect 

control measures 
bridge/driveway nrn1P.I'1' 

sures nec:essarv 

to 
not 

Balch Creek Protection 
cmznv,e.~ as I to build a 

ste;ntfl~caJnce shall be preserved, 
proportion to their impor-

and cul-

uc;;a;;v::.uu'~ of dredge spoils, and 
vrovisions of MCC .7105 through 

.. u,,.,. .... ~...., adverse on 
rf.;T4~t:UI>U~I~t;U£ lVlA!llLl~V .... Vegetation, 

water areas wetlands shall be 
uv.:.~::.'u'c:: extent to preserve water 

impact on the 
Erosion 

phase of 
erosion control mea-

(m) Areas of erosion .... "''"'"''"shall be protected from loss by appro-
priate means which are cmrnp.att,t:Jle the environmental character. 

Staff Comment: 
employed. HDP 

SEC Declirdon 
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In the matter of 

NOTICE: 
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pursuant to the pro­
and must state the 

or on the pro-
2115 S.E. Morrison Street I 
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-----------------------------------------------
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INFORMATIONAL ONLY POLICY DIRECTION APPROVAL 
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BRIEF SUMMARY (include statement of rationale for action requested, 
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of Portland (3033 NW Yeon Street 
ion of the Resolution the Board 
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mULTnomRH COUnTY OREGOn 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PLANNING 
AND DEVELOPMENT 
2115 S.E. MORRISON STREET 
PORTLAND, OREGON 97214 
(503} 248-3043 

To: Board of C~ommissioners 

From: Bob Hall L ,4-J 
Division of Planning and Development 

Re: RB 1-91 

Enclosed are the materials relating to RB 1-91. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
GLADYS McCOY • CHAIR OF THE BOARD 

PAULINE ANDERSON • DISTRICT 1 COMMISSIONER 
GARY HANSEN • DISTRICT 2 COMMISSIONER 
RICK BAUMAN • DISTRICT 3 COMMISSIONER 

SHARRON KELLEY • DISTRICT 4 COMMISSIONER 

AprilS, 1991 

As you know, MCC 11.08.250 requires the Board to make the following findings when considering 
State of Oregon Economic Development Revenue Bond projects: 

(A) An application shall comply wfih: 
(1) The Comprehensive land Use Plan (or Statewide Planning Goals if the plan has not been 

acknowledged by LCDC), the Economic Development Plan, and plan implementation ordi­
nances of the unfi of government having jurisdiction over the sHe in question; and 

(2) Multnomah County's Equal Employment Opportunfiy as indicated in MCC 11.08255. 
(B) An applicant must assert, in writing, the Economic Development Revenue Bond Financing is nec­

essary for expansion or location in the County at this time (i.e., without such financing, the project 
would not be undertaken). 

This packet contains: 

• The application for Oregon Economic Development Revenue Bonds by Lincoln & Allen 
Bindery for property within the City of Portland; 

• A letter from Janet S. Burreson, Director of Economic Development for the Portland Devel­
opment Commission, indicating the project complies with MCC 11.08.250(A)(1); 

• An Equal Employment Opportunity Agreement signed by Charles M. Hopkins, Lincoln & 
Allen Bindery, and a completed MC-DES 1 as required by MCC 11.08.250(A)(2); 

• A statement of necessity from Lincoln & Allen Bindery as required by MCC 11.08.250(B); 
and 

• A proposed resolution for Board action. 

The Planning Staff finds that this material satisfies the criteria of MCC 11.08.250 for Board approval 
of an Economic Development Bond and recommends adoption of the resolution. 

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 



.-----------------------------------------------------------------------------· ----

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
FOR THE COUNTY OF MULTNOMAH 

In the Matter of Issuance of ) 
an Industrial Development ) RESOLUTION 
Revenue Bond State of Oregon ) 
to Lincoln & Allen Bindery ) RB 1-91 

WHEREAS, The Multnomah County Board of Commissioners finds that the aquisition of addi­
tional equipment by Lincoln & Allen Bindery would foster the economic growth 
and legislative policy as set forth in ORS 280.310; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Portland has found that the project is in compliance with the City of 
Portland Comprehensive Plan acknowledged by the Land Conservation and 
Development Commission pursuant to ORS Chapter 197; and 

WHEREAS, The Board finds that the project complies with the provisions of Chapter 11.08 of 
the Multnomah County Code; and 

WHEREAS, ORS 280.330 requires, before the issuance of revenue bonds by the State of Ore­
gon, that the governing body of the County endorse the project; and 

WHEREAS, The Board finds that the completion of this facility within the City of Portland 
would be in the best interests of the citizens of Multnomah County. 

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 

1. That Multnomah County requests the Economic Development Commission and the State of 
Oregon to assist in the financing of the Lincoln & Allen Bindery project within Multnomah 
County through the issuance of revenue bonds secured by the improvements as provided by 
ORS 280.310 to ORS 280.397. 

2. That the Chairperson of the Multnomah County Board of Commissioners be authorized to 
sign and act for the Board in any future action necessary by Multnomah County to promote 
the project. 

(SEAL) 

April23, 1991 

REVIEWED: 
LAURENCE KRESSEL, County Counsel 
for Multnomah County, Oregon 

Assistant County Counsel 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
~TNOMAHCOUNTY,OREGON 

Gladys McCoy, Chair 



LINCOLN 
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BINDERY 

April 8, 1991 

Mr. Bob Hall 
Multnomah County 
Division of Planning and Development 
2115 S. E. Morrison 
Portland, Oregon 97214 

Dear Bob, 

3033 N.W. YEON AVE 
P.O. BOX 10745 ., 

PORTLAND, OREGON 97210 

(503) 223-2035 
OUTSIDE OF OREGON 

1-800-824-1632 

We are applying for Industrial Revenue Bonds to facilitate the expansion 
of our bindery facilities and production capacity. As you will see from our 
application, we are a small, rapidly growing company that has exhausted 
our sources of conventional financing. We would not be able to accomplish 
this proposed project without the 1 OOo/o financing, longer term, and lower 
interest rate that an IDRB affords. 

WA would appreciate your assistance in getting the necessary ap.R,rpyals 
from Multnomah County. 

Thank you in advance for your help. 

Sincerely, 

C~~L<.~'rY!. ibpn~ 
Charles M. Hopkins 

(Ri~©tEn [ill 
. APf( 1 0 1 

Multnomah County 
Zonmg 
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).W. Fifth Avenue 
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823-3200 
503) 823-3368 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

March 20, 1991 

Bob Hall, Multnomah 

Jon 0. Gustafson, PDC (823-3 

State of Oregon Economic De lopm 
Allen Book Publishing and Bin 
County Resolution 

nt ds for Lincoln & 
- Required Multnomah 

Pursuant to our last conversation in your offices, attached find a 
copy of PDC•s letter to Mark Huston finding the project consistent 
with the Economic Development Policy of the City of Portland. 
Because the bonds are to be used solely for the purchase of 
equipment, no zoning verification from the Bureau of Planning is 
required. The equipment will be placed in facilities located in the 
NW Industrial area, which is reserved for heavy industrial uses. 

You have already received a copy of the IDRB application, a $200 
check made out to Mu1tnomah County, and fully executed copies of MC­
DES-1, Current and Projected Permanent Employee and Payroll Data. 

A signed copy of the required Multnomah County Equal Employment 
Opportunity Agreement should be on file with you already in 
connection with the applicant's previous IDRB project, closed two or 
three years ago. If you require a new one, please contact me or Pat 
Newman of Lincoln & Allen (223-2035), for a new one. 

After you have completed your processing and have the actual hearing 
date identified, please contact Pat Newman and me, in order that we 
can be present at the hearing. 

Thank you for your assistance in this process. Please contact me at 
823-3321 if there are any problems, concerns or if there additional 
information is required. 

inc 

M£JJtnomah Co~:mt¥ 
~lfll1!d».~ 



DC 
>RTLAND 
ELOPMENT 
\1M ISS ION 

L. Demorest ... 

hy L. ll:all 
ssioncr 

D. McCracken 
.siooor 

1lton 
.. ~oner 

< L. LaCrosse 
~eDi.,..,tor 

:.W. Fifth Avenue 
td, OR 97204 
823-3200 
:\03) 823-3368 

March 20, 1991 

Mr. Mark Huston 
Business Finance Section Manager 
Oregon Economic Development Department 
775 Summer St., N.E. 
Salem, Oregon 97310 

Dear Mr. Huston: 

This letter will advise you that the city· of Portland has reviewed 
the application of Lincoln & Allen Bindery for $1.750.000 in Economic 
Development Revenue Bond financing from the State of Oregon. We 
find that the proposed project is consistent with the Portland 
Comprehensive Plan, adopted by City Council.in October, 1980., and 
the Economic Development Policy of the City of Portland, the local 
economic development plan, adopted in 1980 and ~pdated in 1988, for 
the following reasons: 

l. The application proposes to purchase additional bindery 
equipment and expand exiting facilities to house the equipment. 
The project location, 3303 N.W. Yeon, permits this activity 
under the new IH (Heavy Industrial) zoning code adopted 
January, 1991, and is consistent with the area Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan. 

2. Consistent· with the Economic Development Policy, the expansion 
of an existing Oregon industrial activity is strongly 
encouraged in this area of Portland. 

3. The project represents the expansion of a Portland business 
which has shown steady growth in the printing and publishing 
industry. All evidence indicates that the firm and the 
industry will continue to be a significant positive force in 
the Portland economy. 

4. 

5. 

The project enhances and supports the development of.the NW 
Industrial Sanctuary. This area, as you know, is specifically 
reserved for industrial processing and distribution activities. 

The project represents $1.75 million increase in real and 
personal property value occurring within Portland city limits. 
The expansion of successful companies, like Lincoln & Allen, is 
key to maintaining the industrial tax base for local 
government. 



• 
Mr. Mark Huston 
March 20, 1991 
Page Two 

6. The project results in the creation of twenty-four (24) new well-paying 
positions within the City of Portland over three years, the majority of 
which are assembly/production in nature. The company supports the 
extension of training opportunities of Oregon workers into this industry 
in an apprenticeship training program developed in cooperation with 
appropriate union and vocational trainers. 

7. The additional expansion of the company can be accomplishe~ without any 
other public subsidy or public investment in roads, sewer, or other 
public utilities. 

Sincerely, 

Janet S. Burreson 
Director of Economic Development 

cc: Multnomah County Board of Commissioners c/o Bob Hall 
Multnomah County Planning 

Pat Newman, Lincoln & Allen 



----------
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BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS GLADYS McCOY • Chair • 248-3~08 
ROOM 605, COUNTY COURTHOUSE PAULINE ANDER~P~! District 1 • 248;..5~?0 .,_ 
1021 S.W. FOURTH AVENUE GRETCHEN KAFOVR'f""' District 2 · ··2-'it~~·~"' 
PORTLAND, OREGON 97204 RICKif3AUMAN:;. -...flis1(icf~~j 24Ji~2fY-...': -T~ 

POLLY CASTERLINE • District 4 • 248-5213 
JANE McGARVIN • Clerk • 248-3277 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENTOPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT 

.· .The applicant agrees that in consideration of the issuance of Oregon Economic Development Revenue Bonds · 
or inclusion in the Oregon Economic Lagging Area Program the applicant will not unlawfully discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, age, race, creed, color, national origin, 
physical or mental handicap with respect to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, , 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termina~cin. rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and 

· Selection for training, including apprenticeship. . · .. 
~ . . . . '" 

·>::r~:::~;.·Th~applicant ~send to each labor ~on or:r~tative of-~orkers with whom applicant has a .bargaining·~;;~;~~,_. 
.· :;;::,:~;r_agreement or other contract or understanding, a notiee'·advising the labc_>r union or workers' representative·o( ·- · . 

· · the applicant's commitment to the_Multnomah County Equal Employment Opportunity Agreement and shall :_ ;, 
post copies of the notice in conspicuous places ·available to employees and applicants foi employment. · 

. . . . :.. . I 

.:: J' . . . . " .. • •·· '·' -~ 

applicant for Oregon Economic Development Revenue Bonds and/or the Oregon Economic Lagging Area.:. 
::Tax Credit Program shall submit Form.MC-DES 1 to the Oregon Economic Development Commission and 
Multnomah County Department of Environmental Services, Division of Planning and Development at the time 
of filing of application for determination of Oregon Industrial Revenue Bond and/or Economic Lagging Area 
project eligibility. 

The applicant for Oregon Industrial Revenue Bonds shall submit Form MC-DES 2 to the Oregon Economic 
Development Commission and Multnomah County Department of Environmental Services, Division of Plan­
ning and Development, ar the 6-month anniversary of fmal expenditure of Oregon Industrial Revenue Bond 
sale proceeds. 

The applicant for lhe Oregon Economic Lagging Area Tax Credit Program shall submit Form MC-DES 2 to 
lhe Oregon Economic Development Commission and Multnomah County Department of Environmental Ser­
vices, Division of Planning and Development, at the end of each fiscal year for which Oregon Economic Lag-
ging Area Tax Credits are claimed. · ~ 

An applicant for Oregon Economic Development RevenueJI~u~or the Oregon Economic Lag- . 
ging Area Tax Credit Program who generates ten o~~-. ~ l positions as a result of the utilizatio_ n of the 
above mentioned program(s) will submit the inf~tl®.'_ ~ uired.· .)l~bit n of MCC 11.08.255. to the 
gon ~nomic Development Commission and . ~J.nab§:d\li'ily Divis~ of Planning and De·v_(~lOJ~m~~nt_~~:; 
.when filmg the first MC-DES 2 form. . . . 1. ~~ :- .;,. '\})"S · ·. ; 

. ·. : . ·. ~'0''. ~<;,'fJ~ . 
Authorized <;ompany Official .. ,'·. ....._~\\.~fJ ~t ~~ 

~· .. t<.\~'l 

AN FOtJAt OPPORTUNITY FMPl OYf'fl 



IV. Job 
Categories 

Officials and 
Managers 

Professionals 

Technicians· 

TOTAL 

XI. Present Payroll 

(OAP)$2,692,547 (PPM)$181,743 (PPF)$ 538.509 
Total Mincrltiu F11.mala 

Xll. Expected Annual Total Payroll When Fully Operational 

(OPF)$ 764,696 
. Femal111 

503 223 .... 2035 
March 15 1 1991 

,,,,. 

mn .A:PPncant 
BLA ApPlicant 
Other-· ..... -----

XIII. Present Temporary and Part Time Employees 

n. ProjectNumber .:a=z.. 

m. Project Completion Date 

(TMT) 7 (I'MM) 1 (TMF) . 3 (TM$) $ 96.225 
Total No. o] No. of Ann~«~l Payroll 

Mlnorlt:Ut• Flllmaf1111 

XIV. Expected Temporary and Part Time Employees When Fully Operational 

d : 



. IJ(f ~ lib I~ II w IE 
MAR 1 c: 

Name and Address of Organizatibrf.J 19 91 . n. ProjectNumber tt: I 
Lincoln & Allen Co. Murt 
P. o. Box 107 45 lo~omah County m. Project Completion Date 

OR 97210 mg 

IV. Job 
Categories 

Officials and 
Managers 

Professionals 

' Officeand 
Clerical 

Craftsperson 
(skilled) 

Operatives 
(semi·skllled) 

Laborers 
(unskilled) 

Service Work 
and Others 

TOTAL 

XI. Present Annual Total Payroll 

(OAP)$ 2,692,547(PPM)$ 181,743 (PPF)$538,509 
Total MinDrltiu Female 

XII. Expected Annual Total Payroll When Fully Operational 

(FOS) $ (OPM) $ (OPF) $"----.,--,---
Total Minorltie1 Fgmo:le 

XV. This Form Prepa:r 

Controller 
Type. Natn11 and P01ition 

03 223-2035 
15, 1991 

1 

XIII. Present Temporary and Part Time Employees 

(TMT) 7 (T.MM) 1 (T.MF) (TM$) $96.225 
Total No. (;] Ann..,..l Payroll 

Mbtorltiu 

XIV. Expected Temporary and Part Time Employees When Fully Operational 

Ann..,./ Payroll 

XVI. Authorized Company Official_; .. .-

Charles Hopkins, Pres1dent CH~Yrl. t/CfW.tr=March 15, 1991 
T'ypt!. Title DfOjJfcu Signature Datt: 
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APPLICATION FOR INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BONDS 

I. Applicant Information 

A. Lincoln & Allen Company 
3033 N. W. Yeon Avenue 
P. 0. Box 10745 
Portland, Oregon 9721 0 
Telephone: (503) 223-2035 
Federal 10 No.: 93-0585319 
Industrial Classification Code: 

B. Headquarters location: 

2731 

Charles M. Hopkins 
11878 Riverwood Road 
Portland, Oregon 97219 
Telephone: (503) 636-0351 
SS No.: 574-14-8066 

3033 N. W. Yeon, Portland, Oregon 97210 

C. Type of business: Sub Chapter S Corporation 

D. Chief executive officer: Charles M. Hopkins, President 

E Other locations: None 

F. The company is not listed on any securities exchange. 

G. Corporate officers: 
Charles M. Hopkins, President 
Howard R. Klug, Vice President 
Personal financial statements -

H. Major stockholders: 
Charles M. Hopkins - 60o/o 
11878 Riverwood Road 
Portland, Oregon 97219 

Exhibit E 

Howard R. Klug - 30o/o 
6570 S. W. Queen Lane 
Beaverton, Oregon 97005 

I. Financial statements per attached - Exhibit A 

J. Lincoln & Allen Co. was started in 1902 ·as a family owned bindery 
and operated as such until 1969. In 1969 the company was 
purchased by Graphic Arts Center, one of Oregon's largest 
commercial printers, and operated as a subsidiary until 1985 when 
it was purchased by a management group from within the company. 



------ -----------
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Officers of Lincoln & Allen Company are Charles Hopkins, President 
and CEO, and Howard Klug, Vice President and General Manager. 
Mr. Hopkins was formerly Vice President of Finance for Graphic 
Arts Center. (See resume attached - Exhibit F.) Mr. Klug has been 
with Lincoln & Allen since 1957 and has bee·n in the bindery business 
for the past 40 years. Other members of Lincoln & Allen's 
management who purchased shares in the company are Robert 
Bengston, Richard Kelly, Richard Perlinger and Ronald Walker. 

Lincoln & Allen is the largest full-service bindery on the West 
Coast. We provide hardcover, softcover, stitching and mechanical 
binding, along with various folding, trimming, and drilling services 
to over 350 printers and publishers from Northern California to 
British Columbia. Graphic designers, print buyers, and major 
printers view Lincoln & Allen as a unique bindery able to function 
as an equal partner in the production of printed material. 

The company's sales have grown from $2.7 miilion in fiscal 1986 
. when it was acquired to a projected $7.1 million this year. This 
is a compounded growth rate of 21°/o. 

II. Project Information 

A. The proposed location of the project is at the companis principal 
facility at 3033 N. W. Yean in Portland's Northwest Industrial area. 
The project is not in either an economically lagging area or an 
enterprise area. 

B. The project is expected to start April 1, 1991 and be 
completed by June 30, 1991. 

C. The company received $1,175,000 in Industrial Development Revenue 
Bonds in late 1989 for expansion of its bindery facility and for 
bindery equipment. The equipment installed in March 1990 was 
expected to handle the company's needs for the next three years. 
Actual volume has already exceeded what was projected for the 
second year and the present quarter is expected to exceed our 
three shift capacity by 31o/o. The company has clearly 

- ! 
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underestimated the demand for adhesive binding and now wishes 
to add $1,750,000 to it's previous bond issue to allow for 
additional capacity. 

At the same time, the out of state owners of the only other large 
bindery located in Portland moved it's facilities to California, 
leaving a major gap in the binding market for a unique lay flat 
version of adhesive binding used for binding manuals for the 
computer industry which will force local printers to send their 
work to either California or Seattle. 

The equipment that will be added is capable of producing either 
regular adhesive binding like the company has been doing or the lay 
flat or Otabind binding that had been provided by the bindery that has 
moved. 

The previous bond issue had also anticipated the acquisition of 
adjacent land and the construction of a 7000 square foot addition 
to the company's facility. This plan proved to be impractical and 
costly, so the company has negotiated a long-term lease for 18,200 
square feet across the street that will allow us to move other 
equipment from our present facility to allow space to accommodate 
the new equipment. 

D. The company's products include a full range of bookbinding 
including hardcover, softcover, stitching, and mechanical 
binding along with various folding, trimming and drilling 
services. The company presently operates an adhesive binding 
line that is operating at 131 o/o of three shifts and is having to 
turn work away that must be bound in either Washington or 
California or is lost to out of state printers. Sales of adhesive 
bound products represent approximately 42o/o of the company's 
sales. (Exhibit B). 



-4-

E Bond Proceeds: 

1. Adhesive Binder with Otabind capability $1,410,000 

Support Equipment 305,000 

4. Other - Bond Fees 35,000 

5. Total Bond $1,750,000 

6. Bond Issue as a o/o of Total Project 100o/o 

F. The anticipated market for adhesive binding is expected to come 
from the company's existing customers and market areas which 
include over 350 printers and publishers from Northern California 
to British Columbia. Approximately 30o/o of our customers and 
40o/o of our sales are from outside Oregon. We estimate that another 
40o/o of our sales to Oregon customers are for their customers 
outside of Oregon. So, as much as 80°/o of our work is for customers 
outside of Oregon that is creating employment for Oregonians. 

G Projected impact on the local economy: 

1. The company's facility is located on Yean Avenue which was 
significantly upgraded as an extension of the 405 Freeway 
and is presently understood to be functioning at only 70°/o 
of its service capacity. The proposed project will not require 
additional support services. Current sewer and water service 
will be adequate, and schools are not affected as the area is 
industrial. 

2. The company serves a growing printing and publishing industry 
in Oregon. Printers are not providing these services in-house 
because the wide range of alternative binding styles required 
by their customers do not individually present enough volume 
for printers to justify the investment. In cases where they do 
choose to invest in binding equipment, they usually do not have 
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sufficient capacity to handle all of their own work during peak 
months and often run into scheduling problems. 

The existence of a strong trade bindery with adequate capacity 
in all the binding styles allows the printers to concentrate 
their investments in press equipment that they are able to more 
fully utilize with the assurance that they can get their binding 
work done. The result is that expanded bindery capacity not only 
adds employment in our company, but allows printers to expand 
their employment as well. Eight of the company's major 
customers have recently added or intend to add major printing 
press capacity which is expected to further increase demand for 
bindery services. 

A significant portion of the work that is produced on this 
equipment comes from out of state through sales offices 
maintained by the company's customers in New York, Chicago, 
Dallas, Detroit, Minneapolis, Los Angeles, San Francisco, 
Sacramento, San Jose and Seattle, so its growth has historically 
been significantly higher than the local economy. 

H This application has been submitted to the Portland Development 
Commission who will in turn submit it to the necessary city and 
county agencies. (Exhibit D). 

IlL Labor Force 

A. The company has grown from 50 employees in 1986 when it was 
acquired to 102 at the present time. This is a compounded growth 
rate of 22°/o a year. Currently 95 employees are full time and we 
use the equivalent of an additional 7 part time employees to 
accommodate the fluxuation in work levels. (Exhibit B). 

B. Current employment at project site - Same as A 
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C. Additional fulltime employees to be hired for project: 

1. First Year 13 
2. Second Year 5 
3. Third Year _2 

Total Additional Jobs 24 

D. Labor category of jobs created: 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Bookbinder I 5 
Bookbinder II 1 
General Worker 7 4 5 
Office Clerical 1 1 

Total 13 5 6 

E The project does not have any special labor requirements other 
than skilled bookbinders. The skilled bookbinders are expected 
to be promoted from within. 

F. No special worker-training programs are anticipated. The company 
maintains an apprenticeship program of on-the-job training 
starting with entry level employees. 

G The project does not involve a plant relocation. 

IV. Projected Payroll and Profits Please refer to the attached Analysis 
of Cash Flow. (Exhibit B). 

A. Wages from expansion: 

First Year 
Second Year 
Third Year 

$ 559,258 
851,733 

1,028,934 
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These wage figures include the wages from the additional employees 
required for this project plus 11 fulltime employees in the first 
year and 6 fulltime employees in the second year still to be added 
from the first bond project. 

B. Gross profit from expansion: 

First Year 
Second Year 
Third Year 

$ 327,017 
566,930 
823,821 

C. No local government expenditures for public services are 
anticipated. 

Schedule of Exhibits: 

Exhibit A 
Exhibit 8 
Exhibit C 
Exhibit D 
Exhibit E 
Exhibit F 

Company Financial Statements 
Analysis of Cash Flow 
Signature page 
Letter to PDC 
Personal Financial Statement 
Mr. Hopkins resume 



AS OF January 31, 1991 
REPORT # 01 VERSION # 000031 fORMAT # 05 

------ CURRENT ------ LAST YEAR NET CHANGE 
AMOUNT PCT AMOUNT F'CT AMOUNT PCT 

l ASSETS 

" ~i CURRENT ASSETS f. 
CASH 553.48 0.0 4,725.84• 0.1 4,172.36- 88.3-
BOND fUNDS 209,243.51 4.6 600,222.57 14.8 390,979.06- 65.1-
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,845,804.20 40.9. 901,986.30 22.2 943,817.90 104.6 
INVENTORIES 149,486.11 3.3 161,869.97 4.0 12,383.86- 7.7-
PREPAID EXPENSES 54,798.30~ 1. 2- 17,304.55- 0.4- 37,493.75- 216.7 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 1,985.81 0.0 566, 118.01 13.9 564,13'2.20- 99.6-

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,152,274.81 47.6 2,217,618.14 54.6 65,343.33- 2.9-

fiXED ASSETS 
F'ROPERTI E S, AT COST 3,640,838.75 80.6 2,681,809.34 66.1 959,029.41 35.8 
LESS11 I!.!EPR. RESERVE 1,335,897.78- 29.6- 886,453.44- 21.8- 449,444.34- 50.7 

TOTAL fiXED ASSETS 2,304,940.97 51.0 1,795,355.90 44.2 509,585.07 28.4 

LOAN FEES 60, 101.43 1.3 46,639.19 1.1 13,462.24 28.9 

TOTAL ASSETS 4,517,317.21 100.0 4,059,613.23 100.0 457,703.98 11.3 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

_) CURRENT LIABILITIES 
SHORT TERM DEBT 437,4:37.64 9.7 143,330.19 3.5 294,107.45 205.2 
LONG TERM DEBT-CURRENT 618,832.14 13.7 474,507.89 11.7 14.4,324.25 30.4 

-,I ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 386,604,58 8.6 287,223.86 7.1 99,380.72 34.6 
ACCRUED PAYROL..L 218,361.50 4.8 126,794.86 3. 1 91,566.64 72.2 
ACC. EXPENSES & OTHER 19,813.45- 0.4- 24. 461. 13- 0.6- 4,647.68 19.0-

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,641,422.41 36.3 1,007,395.67 24.8 634,026.74 62.9 

DEFERRED TAXES PAYABLE 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 
LONG TERM DEBT 1,775,003.44 39.3 2,405,714.46 59.3 630. 711. 02- 26.2-

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,416,425.85 75.6 3,413,110.13 84.1 3,315.7?. 0.1 
} -

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CAPITAL STOCK 1,000.00 0.0 1,000.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 

·-) RETAINED EARNINGS 982,978.36 21.8 528,590.10 13.0 454,388.26 86.0 
PAID-IN-CAPITAL 116,913.00 2.6 116,913.00 2.9 0.00 0.0 

~) 
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 1,100,891.36 24.4 646,503.10 15.9 454,388.26 70.3 

TOTAL LIAS. AND EQUITY 4,517,317.21 100.0 4,059,613.23 100.0 457,703.98 11.3 

_) m 
>< 
:t: -tD --f 
l> 



SALES 

COST OF SALES 

COVER 
BOARD 
OUTSIDE TRADE 
OTHER MATERIAL 

TOTAL MATERIAL 

FACTORY COST 
; .. 

COST OF SALES 

GROSS PROFIT 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 
SELLING EXPENSE 

TOTAL 

OPERATING INCOME 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE 

TOTAL 

INCOME BEFORE TAXES 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

NET INCOME 

Jenuery 01, 1991 - Jenuery 31, 1991 
REPORT ~ 02 VERSION ~ 000012 FORMAT ~ 01 

----------- CURRENT PERIOD -----J-------- -------------- YEAR TO DATE ------------- -- YTD NET CHANGE --
THIS YEAR PCT LAST YEAR PCT THIS YEAR PCT LAST YEAR PCT AMOUNT VAR% 

725,282.65 100.0 444,355.28 100.0 5,919,363.27 100.0 5,071,794.94 100.0 847,568.33 16.7 

7,508.88 1.0 10,031. 82 2.3 189,415.06 3.2 110,808.28 2.2 78,606.78 70.9 
6,975.10 1.0 6,193.58 1.4 128,695.86 2.2 73,045.02 1.4 55,650.84 76.'2 

28,393.29 3.9 15,432.41 3.5 270,638.95 4.6 306,426.89 6.0 35,787.94- 11. 7-
48,340.73 6.7 .35,36.3.28 8.0 465,730.65 7.9 430,255.88 8.5 .35,474.77 8.2 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
91,218.00 12.6 67,021.09 15. 1 1,054,4.80.52 17.8 920,5.36.07 18.2 133,946..45 14.6 

408,190.95 56.3 291,556..14 65.6 3,604,386.88 60.9 3,133,402.81 61.8 470,984.07 15.0 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------499,408.95 68.9 358,575.23 80.7 4,658,867.40 78.7 4,053,938.88 79.9 604,928.52 14.9 

225,87.3.70 31.1 85,780.05 19.3 1,260,495.87 '21.3 1,017,856.06 20.1 242,639.81 23.8 

66,064.11 9.1 40,207.12 9.0 481,538.78 8.1 379,599.39 7.5 101,939.39 26.9 
33,993.42 4..7 20,957.23 4.7 227,297.14 3.8 202,510.26 4.0 24,786.88 12.2 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------100,057.53 13.8 61,164.35 13.8 ?08,835.92 12.0 582,109.65 u.s 126,726.27 21.8 

125,816.17 17.3 24,615.70 5.5 551,659.95 9.3 435,746.41 8.6 115,913.54 :26.6 

20,764.65 2.9 18,275.76 4.1 232,935.16 3.9 189,895.59 3.7 4.3,039.57 22.7 
6.46- 0.0 16.26- 0.0 30,647.83- 0.5- 8,350.18- 0.2- 22,297.65-267.0 

-------------------------------------------------~-------------------------------------------------------20,758.19 2.9 18,259.50 4.1 202,287.33 3.4 181,545.41 3.6 20,741.92 11.4 

105,057.98 14.5 6,356.20 1.4. 34.9,372.62 5.9 254.,201.00 5.0 95,171.62 37.4 

0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 **:A:**:i. 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
105,057.98 14.5 6,356.20 1.4 34.9,3?2.62 5.9 254,201.00 5.0 95,171.62 37.4 

=•=====================================·=····=··==··===·········==··=·=================================== 

) 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Stockholders 
Lincoln & Allen Company 
Portland, Oregon 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of 
Lincoln & Allen Company as of March 31, 1990 and 1989 and the 
related statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and 
cash flows for the years ended March 31, 1990 and 1989. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signif­
icant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Lincoln & Allen Company as of March 31, 1990 and 1989 
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years 
then ended, ~n conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles. c~ ~~ 

Portland, Oregon 
June 1, 1990 



Current assets: 

LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
BALANCE SHEETS 

March 31, 1990 and 1989 

ASSETS 1990 1989 

Cash 
Industrial Revenue Bond Fund 
Receivables, including $197,499 and 

$ 7,231 $ 
67,135 

4,186 

$259,987 from Graphic Arts 
Publishing Company in 1990 and 
1989, respectively 

Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment, net 
Deposits on property and equipment 
Restricted cash held by trustee 

for capital projects 
Loan fees, net 

Current liabilities: 

LIABILITIES 

Notes payable, due within one year 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Notes payable, due after one year 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Common stock, $1 par value, 1,000 shares 
authorized, issued and outstanding 

Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 

1,204,853 
219,888 

38,887 

1,537,994 

2,626,761 

301,074 
62,879 

$~,528,2Q8 

$ 741,306 
317,747 
335,768 

1,394,821 

2,382,368 

3,777,189 

1,000 
116,913 
633,606 

979,733 
251,189 
30,684 

1,265,792 

1,919,206 
2,250 

8!618 

$3,125,866 

$ 695,283 
289,197 
177,050 

1,161,530 

1,596,034 

2,757,564 

1,000 
116,913 
320,389 

751,519 438,302 

$4.528.2Q8 $3.195.866 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

for the years ended March 31, 1990 and 1989 

Revenue 
Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

<::elling expenses 
Gentral and administrative expenses 

Income from operations 

Other income (expense): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

on sale of property and 
equipment 

Net income 

1990 

$6,306,764 
4,992,354 

1,314,410 

256,553 
475!071 

731,624 

582,786 

4,117 
(236,373) 

8,687 

~223,569) 

$ 359,212 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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1989 

$4,886,903 
4,076,786 

810,117 

169,909 
391,844 

561,753 

248,364 

167 
(229,247) 

11,929 

~217,151) 

$ 31,213 



Balance, 

LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
for the years ended March 31, 1990 and 1989 

Additional 
Common Paid-in Retained 
Stock CaEital Earnings 

March 31, 1988 $1,000 $116,913 $289,176 

Net income 31,213 

Balance, March 31, 1989 1,000 116,913 320,389 

Net income 359,217 

Dividends paid ~46,000) 

Balance, March 31, 1990 $1.000 $ll2e91;2 $2:23.202 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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Total 

$407,089 

31,213 

438,302 

359,217 

~46,000) 

$ZSl.5l~ 
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LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

for the years ended March 31, 1990 and 1989 

1990 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
1989 

Net income $ 359,217 $ 31,213 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to 

cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities: 

Depreciation 
Gain on sale of property and equipment 
Amortization of loan fees 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchases of property and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property and 

equipment 
Cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities:· 
Dividends paid 
Additions to notes payable 
Payments on notes payable 
Industrial Revenue Bond Fund 
Unexpended economic development revenue 

bond proceeds restricted for 
capital projects 

Loan fees 
Cash provided by financing activities 
Increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow 
information: 

387,175 307,435 
(8,687) (11,929) 
4,661 2,104 

(225,120) (457,802) 
31,301 (1,178) 
(8,203) (8,034) 
28,550 73,823 

158,718 43,546 

727,612 (20,822) 

(1,120,279) (1,094,344) 

36,486 93,116 

(1,083,793) (1,001,228) 

(46,000) 
1,270,000 1,163,245 

(437,643) (174,599) 
(67,135) 

(301,074) 
{58!922) 
359,226 988,646 

3,045 (33,404) 

4-;186 37!590 

$ 7.,23~ $ ~~1§6 

Cash paid during the year for interest $ 236.487. $ 219,165 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Lincoln & Allen Company (the Company) was incorporated July 26, 
1985 and is engaged primarily in book binding. 

Following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed 
by the Company. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) 
cost or market value. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is com­
puted using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives (5-7 years) of the related assets. Maintenance and repairs 
are . charged to expense as incurred; expenditures for additions, 
improvements and replacements are capitalized. Upon disposal of 
property and equipment subject to depreciation, the accounts are 
relieved of the related costs and accumulated depreciation and 
resulting gains and losses are reflected in the statement of 
income. 

The restricted cash at March 31, 1990 represents the unexpended 
proceeds of the economic development revenue bonds obtained 
specifically for the acquisition of binding equipment and expand­
ing and remodeling the existing facility. 

Income Taxes 

The Company has elected to be treated as an S Corporation. 
Accordingly, the financial statements include no provision for 
income taxes as such taxes are the responsibility of the Company's 
stockholders. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the · statements of cash flows, the Company con­
siders all short-term highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less to he cash equivalents. 

6 
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LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued 

2. Receivables: 

Trade accounts receivable 
Other 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

3. Inventories: 

Raw materials 
Work in process 

4. Property and Equipment: 

Machinery and equipment 
Office furniture and fixtures 
Leasehold improvements 

Less accumulated depreciation 

7. 

1990 1989 

$1,217,249 
17,265 

(29,661) 

$973,460 
15,914 
{9,641) 

$1.204,853 $979.733 

1990 1989 

$154,995 $168,231 
64,893 82,958 

$219.888 $251.189 

1990 1989 

$3,492,469 $2,441,221 
23,999 28,432 
67,048 46,191 

3,583,516 2,515,844 

956,755 596,638 

$2,62fi,:Zfil $l,~l~,2Qfi 



LINCOLN & COMPANY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued 

5. 

Due Within Due After 
Total One Year One Year 

Notes payable under $600,000 line of credit 
(up to 80% of eligible accounts receiv-
able}, with United States National Bank 
of Oregon, collateralized by all assets, 
interest at 1% over prime (prime was 
10% at March 31, 1990} $ 261,179 $261,179 

Note payable to Graphic Arts Center, Inc., 
collateralized by all assets, but 
subordinate to bank indebtedness, quar-
terly interest payments at 11%, annual 
principal payments of varying amounts, 
matures May 1991 169,500 40,500 $ 129,000 

Note payable to United States National Bank 
of Oregon, collateralized by equipment, 
payable in monthly installments of 
$10,035 including interest at 10.25%, 
matures March 1992 216,264 103,008 113,256 

Note payable to United States National Bank 
of Oregon, collateralized by property 
and equipment and guaranteed by majority 
stockholder, payable in monthly install-
ments of $23,268 including interest at 
10.5%, due August 1992 1,150,792 166,450 984,342 

Note payable to Graphic Arts Center, Inc., 
collateralized by all assets, but sub-
ordinate to bank indebtedness, quarterly 
payments of $5,582 including interest at 
11%, matures Hay 1993 60,325 16,352 43,973 

Note payable to United States National Bank 
of Oregon, collateralized by equipment, 
payable in monthly installments of $3,156 
including interest at 12%, matures 
December 1993 90,614 28,817 61,797 

Revenue bonds payable to the State of Oregon 
Economic Development Department, collater-
alized by property and equipment, semi-
annual interest payments at 8.9%, annual 
principal payments at varying amounts, 
matures December 1996. (monthly payments 
of $18,550 including interest- $67,135 
cumulative as of March 31, 1990 - are 
accumulated in a bond fund at U.S. 
National Bank of Oregon for payment of 
bonds} 1 '175,000 125,000 1,050,000 

$J,lZJ.6Z~ $Z~l.JQ6 $Z.JBZ.J6B 
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LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued 

5. Notes Payable, Continued: 

Under loan agreements, the Company has made certain covenants 
requiring the maintenance of working capital of $100, 000 and a 
debt to tangible net worth (including subordinated debt as tang­
ible net worth) ratio not to exceed 4:1 and the limiting of 
majority stockholder compensation and capital expenditures in any 
one fiscal year. 

Additionally, the company has made certain covenants relating to 
the revenue bonds, requiring the maintenance of equity (including 
subordinated debt) of $800,000, debt to net worth of 4.9:1 (4.0:1 
by March 1992) and a current ratio of 1.1:1. 

Approximate maturities of notes payable for each of the years end­
ing March 31 are as follows: 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
Thereafter 

6. Pension Plans: 

$ 741,306 
617,425 
999,511 
170,432 
180,000 
415,000 

$3.123.674 

In accordance with collective bargaining agreements, the Company 
makes contributions at specified rates to the pension trusts of 
two multi-employer pension plans. Such contributions, which 
totaled approximately $86,000 and $65,000 for 1990 and 1989, 
respectively, are funded on a current basis. The Company's rela­
tive position in these plans with respect to the actuarial value 
of accumulated vested and nonvested plan benefits and net assets 
available for benefits is not presently available to the Company. 
However, the most recent actuarial information available with 
respect to each of these plans indicates their total assets exceed 
their total actuarially computed liability for vested benefits. 
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LINCOLN & ALLEN COMPANY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued 

7. Related Party Transactions: 

The Company 1 s majority stockholder is also the majority stock­
holder of Graphic Arts Center Publishing Company. Significant 
transactions and year-end account balances between the Company 
and related parties are as follows: 

Sales to Graphic Arts Center Publishing 
Company 

Receivable from Graphic Arts Center 
Publishing Company, net 

Rent paid to majority stockholder 
Receivable from majority stockholder 

8. Lease Commitments: 

1990 

$625,280 

181,821 
126,760 
16,703 

1989 

$527,019 

259,987 
124,800 
15,352 

The Company leases office and production facilities from its 
majority stockholder under a five year operating lease which 
expires in September 1991. This lease has a five year renewal 
option. Additionally, the Company leases warehouse space and 
office equipment under two leases expiring March 1991 and Septem­
ber 1993, respectively. Rent expense for 1990 and 1989 totaled 
$145,447 and $143,741, respectively. 

Future minimum lease payments for each of the years ending 
March 31 are as follows: 

1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 

9. Major CUstomers: 

$155,328 
72,648 
4,368 
2,184 

$234.528 

The Company has sales to one customer amounting to 29% and 42% of 
total revenue for the years ended March 31, 1990 and 1989, 
respectively. Additionally, as discussed in Note 7, sales to an 
affiliated company were approximately 10% and 11% of total revenue 
for the years ended March 31, 1990 and 1989, respectively. 
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. 
LJN:DL~ t ~l1~~ :DMPAUr EXHIBIT 8 

1986 1987 1988 1989 199(1 1991 1991 
101105 12 I'IOS 

fllOYEES ACT EST 
--------------------
JLL Tli'IE 5(1 49 53 66 92 95 95 
\RTTII'IE (FULLTII'I£ EniVALENTS} 0 12 13 13 13 1 7 
)Tf%1. 50 61 bb 79 105 102 102 

lOFIT ~ lOSS 

~SALES 2702051 3242815 3980953 4886903 6306764 5919363 1139363 

~·ERAHN.E PROFIT 137079 262690 255465 248364 582786 551660 726946 

.:1 PF:OFIT 61655 154281 157966 31213 359217 349373 476659 

?ERATIN8 CASH FLOW 
-------<#--"' 
PERATING PROFIT J "' 137079 262690 255465 248364 582786 551660 726941:. 
EPRECIATION 83368 128812 t51b02 307435 387175 434282 517802 

-------
OTA!. CASHFLO~ 220447 391502 407(167 555799 9699b1 985942 124~748 

ALANCE SHEET 
--------------------
ssns 
----------
·uRREtU 469477 595706 832182 1265792 1537994 2152275 20b3803 
ONSTERI'! 768529 800814 1226456 1930074 2990714 2365042 2319909 

----- ------
·orAL ASSETS 1238006 1396520 205863€ 3195866 4528708 4517311 4383712 

JABJLITIES 
·------
:URRENT 501514 UB551 687034 1161530 1394821 1641422 752122 
.OtiSTERt! 634563 629032 964515 1596034 23823bB 1775004 2203413 

---- ---
1136077 1107583 1651549 27575b4 3777189 3416426 2955535 

iHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 
----
>AJD IN CAPITAL 91000 91000 117913 117913 117913 117913 317913 
tETAIKED EARNINGS 10929 131210 28917b 320389 63360b 982978 1U02b4 

-- ---
101929 222210 407089 438302 751519 1100891 1428117 

--- ---
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1238006 1329793 2058638 31958b6 4528708 4517317 4383712 



EXHIBIT C 

All information provided in connection with this application for Oregon 
Economic Development Revenue Bond financing is, to the best of my 
knowledge, true, accurate, complete, and current. I further certify 
that, except as described in this application: 

(1) No litigation is current, pending or threatened in any court 
or other tribunal or competent jurisdiction, state or 
federal, in any way contesting, questioning or affecting the 
eligibility of the applicant to apply for this financing, the 
ability of the applicant to complete the project, or the 
validity or enforceability of any covenant or document 
executed by the applicant in connection with the application 
or any of the procedures for the authorization of sale, 
execution, registration or delivery of the bonds, nor are 
there any unasserted claims outstanding. 

J ~(2) The applicant has never filed for reorganization or sought 
relief or been involuntarily declared bankrupt under any 
provision of the United States Bankruptcy Code. 

{3) 

{4) 

No officer, director, partner, or owner of a 5 percent 
interest (legal or beneficial) of the applicant has ever 
filed for reorganization or sought relief or been 
involuntarily declared bankrupt under any provision of the 
United States Bankruptcy Code. 

Neither the applicant nor any officer, director, partner or 
owner of a 5 percent interest (legal or beneficial) thereof 
has ever been indicted or convicted of a felony or of a 
misdemeanor involving moral turpitude. 

I agree that material misrepresentation of fact is grounds for the 
Finance Committee to deny or withdraw project eligibility at any time. 

Attest: 

Ctt UcCc.'i~J Ur fill,,;" 
Authorized Companyepresentative 

Dated 

5 



LINCOLN 
&-ALLEN 
BINDERY 

March 1, 1991 

Mr. John Gustafson 
Portland Development Commission 
1120 s. w. 5th #1102 
Portland, Oregon 97214 

Dear John, 

EXHIBIT D 
3033 N.W. YEON AVE., 

P.O. BOX 10745 
PORTLAND, OREGON 97210 

(503) 223-2035 
OUTSIDE OF OREGON 

1-800-824-1632 

We are forwarding our Application for Industrial Revenue Bonds to you for 
your assistance in getting the necessary approval from Multnomah County 
and the City of Portland. Enclosed is the application fee of $200. 

Thank you in advance for your help. 

Sincerely, 

~--"/:?~ 
Howard R. K!ug 
Vice President 



EXHIBIT E 

(UNDER SEPARATE COVER) 



EXHIBIT ~F 

I • 

MICHAEL HOPKINS 

President - Lincoln & Allen Company 
President - Graphic Arts Center Publishing Company 

.; " Purchased and has operated both Lincoln & Allen and Graphic 
Arts Center Publishing since August, 1985. 

From 1977 to 1985, served as Vice President of Finance and 
Secretary of Graphic Arts Center, Inc., the West Coast's largest 
~ommercial printer. Also served as a Director and Member of the 
Executive Committee from 1978. Responsibilities included the 
areas of Finance, Accounting, Data Processing, Purchasing and 
Personnel. Major personal emphasis in planning and analysis, 
operating management reporting systems, incentive compensa­
tion and negotiation of major financing and the sales and 
purcha~es of business units. 

Previous experience includes five years with both 3M Company 
and Evans Products Company in various management roles. 
Emphasis in both companiek was on problem solving and consult­
ing in areas of Finance, Accounting, Data Processing, Sales, Market­
ing, Purchasing, Inventory Management, Production Control and 
Liquidations. 

Graduated in 1966 with honors (Dean•s list) from the University of 
Denver with a B.S. Degree in Business Administration, majoring in 
Accounting. 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
FOR THE COUNTY OF MULTNOMAH 

In the Matter of Issuance of ) 
an Industrial Development ) 
Revenue Bond State of Oregon ) 
to Lincoln & Allen Bindery ) RB 1-91 

RESOLUTION 
91-54 

WHEREAS, The Multnomah County Board of Commissioners finds that the aquisition of addi­
tional equipment by Lincoln & Allen Bindery would foster the economic growth 
and legislative policy as set forth in ORS 280.310; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Portland has found that the project is in compliance with the City of 
Portland Comprehensive Plan acknowledged by the Land Conservation and 
Development Commission pursuant to ORS Chapter 197; and 

WHEREAS, The Board finds that the project complies with the provisions of Chapter 11.08 of 
the Multnomah County Code; and 

WHEREAS, ORS 280.330 requires, before the issuance of revenue bonds by the State of Ore­
gon, that the governing body of the County endorse the project; and 

WHEREAS, The Board finds that the completion of this facility within the City of Portland 
would be in the best interests of the citizens of Multnomah County. 

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 

1. That Multnomah County requests the Economic Development Commission and the State of 
Oregon to assist in the financing of the Lincoln & Allen Bindery project within Multnomah 
County through the issuance of revenue bonds secured by the improvements as provided by 
ORS 280.310 to ORS 280.397. 

2. That the Chairperson of the Multnomah County Board of Commissioners be authorized to 
sign and act for the Board in any future action necessary by Multnomah County to promote 

".the iJroject. 
' 

(SEAL) 

April23, 1991 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 
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BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
FOR MULTNOMAH COUNTY 

In the Matter of Recommending Adoption of 
Ordinances Amending MCC Chapter 11.15 
Concerning Erosion Control and Storm and 
Surface Water Facilities and Regulations 

) 
) 
) 
) 

RESOLUTION 
c 2-91 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission is authorized by Multnomah County Code, Chapter 
11.05 and by ORS 215.110, to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners 
the adoption of Ordinances to carry out and amend the Multnomah County Com­
prehensive Plan and its implementing ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, The implementing code provisions in MCC Chapter 11.15 do not sufficiently com­
ply with 1989 amendments to Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 340-41 
470(3)(g) requiring a program plan for controlling the quality of urban storm 
runoff within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin; and 

WHEREAS, State Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) has indicated 
that the OAR section cited above can be addressed through amendments to the 
Hillside Development and Erosion Control subsection of MCC 11.15; and 

WHEREAS, To avoid potential enforcement proceedings by DEQ against the County, it is nec­
essary to amend MCC Chapter 11.15 regarding erosion control and storm water 
runoff provisions applicable within Tualatin Basin; and 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission considered this Ordinance at a public hearing on April 
1, 1991 where all interested persons were given an opportunity to appear and be 
heard, 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ordinances captioned " ... An Ordinance 
amending the Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 by amending regulations applicable to 
grading and filling activities, and clarifying standards applicable to land disturbing activities 
within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin, and declaring an emergency ... ", is hereby recom­
mended for adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. 

Approved this 1st day of April, 1991 

~~ 
Multnomah County Planning Commission 
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

FOR MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 

ORDINANCE NO. __ _ 

Page 1 

5 An Ordinance amending the Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 by amending 

6 regulations applicable to grading and filling activities, and clarifying standards applicable to 

7 land disturbing activities within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin, and declaring an 

8 emergency. 

9 (Language in brackets [ ] is to be deleted; underlined sections are new text.) 

10 Multnomah County Ordains as follows: 

11 

Section I. Findings. 

13 (A). On August 3, 1989, the State of Oregon Environmental Quality Commission 

14 (EQC) promulgated rules for the Tualatin River Basin that requires Mulmomah County and all 

15 other counties and cities within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin to submit plans for control 

16 of urban storm runoff. Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 340-41-470(3)(g) states: "Within 

17 18 months after adoption of these rules, Washington, Clackamas, Mulmomah Counties and all 

18 incorporated cities within the Tualatin River and Oswego Lake subbasins shall submit to the 

19 Department a program plan for controlling the quality of urban storm runoff within their 

20 respective jurisdictions to comply with the requirements of sections (a) and (b) of this rule." 

21 (B). Multnomah County Ordinance Number 643 amended MCC 11.15 (adopted 

February 20, 1990). These County Zoning Ordinance amendments were in part adopted to 

address 1989 OAR provisions regarding erosion control within the Tualatin Basin. Ordinance 

24 643 added a "Hillside Development and Erosion Control" subsection to the Multnomah 

25 County Zoning Ordinance (MCC 11.15.6700 -.6735). The subsection a "Grading and 

Erosion Control Permit" for most land disturbing activities within 
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2 

3 

that 

State Department Environmental Quality (DEQ) has ...... "" ................. 

code provisions in MCC 11.15 do not all 1989 

The County not storm water 

4 of streams and drainageways within the Tualatin 

5 that applicable OAR's can be addressed through text amendments to 

6 and Control subsection of MCC 11. 

7 avoid potential enforcement proceedings it is necessary to amend 

8 MCC Chapter 11.15 regarding erosion control and storm water runoff provisions applicable 

9 

10 

11 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

within Tualatin River Drainage 

(E). An emergency declared because Multnomah 

340 schedule of compliance. 

(F). The State Department of Forestry requests text 

subsection to Practices (MCC 11.15.67 

Section II. L..U.~~~.u.?.· 

Multnomah County 

11.15.6700 Purposes 

""'"' ..... """'"'"'' of 

11.15 is amended to as 

not met the OAR 

to 

the public health, safety and welfare, private to 

earth movement hazards in specified areas and erosion and related environmental 

damage unincorporated Multnomah County, all in accordance with ORS 215, 

Planning Goal No. 7 and OAR 340-4 the Tualatin River Basin, and 

Multnomah County Comprehensive Framework Plan Policy No. 14. This subdistrict 

to: 

human life; 

2 13 
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Page 3 13 

1 Protect property and structures; 

2 (C) Minimize expenditures for rescue and relief efforts associated with earth 

3 movement failures; 

4 (D) Control erosion, production and transport of sediment; and 

5 Regulate land development actions including excavation and fills, drainage 

6 protect exposed soil surfaces from erosive forces. 

7 !El Control stonnwater dischar~es and protect streams. ponds. and wetlands withi~ 

8 Tualatin River Praina~e BasinJ:H',H:> 

9 

10 11.15.6710 Permits Required 

11 (A) All persons proposing development, construction, or site clearing (including tree 

12 removal) on property located in hazard areas as identified on the "Slope Hazard Map", 

13 or on lands with average slopes of 25 percent or more shall obtain a Hillside 

14 Development Permit as prescribed by this subdistrict, unless specifically exempted 

15 MCC .6715. 

16 

18 

19 

21 

24 

(B) All persons proposing site grading volume of soil or earth material 

stored, disposed of or used as fill exceeds 50 cubic yards, or which obstruct or alter a 

drainage course [or on any sites within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin], shall obtain 

a Grading and Erosion Control Permit as 

by MCC .6715(B)(2) through (8) or 

Hillside Development Permit do not 

Permit. 

MCC 11. 15.6715(C) below, 

by 

Development projects to a 

a separate Grading and Erosion 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

11.15.6715 Exempt Land Uses and Activities 

following are exc~m1n from the provisions of Chapter: 

development, 

approved prior to 

conform to 

permits 

"'~-''"'""""J'"" requirements 

4 13 

1 that a 

was 

8 manner designed to minimize earth movement hazards, surface runoff, erosion, and "'"""uu"'"'"'"'"u' 

9 to property, and the public welfare. such 

11 

13 

15 

18 

19 

21 

need not 

( 

(2) The 

The 

for a pursuant to this subdistrict, if : 

finished slopes will be than %; and.. 

or filled area is 20,000 feet or less; and.. 

to stored is or 

(4) Rainwater 

10,000 

Impervious 

during or after an area smaller 

(6) No drainageway 

modified; 

(7) The 

bank 

within 

greater[; and] .. 

[(8) Any tree 

of than 10,000 square are to be 

to be blocked or its stormwater carrying "'"~'"-'-'• 

place 100 by horizontal measurement top 

mean high watermark (line a of water ,or 

associated a watercourse or water whichever is 

work will be subject to the State 

(C) Categorical Exemptions -Notwithstanding MCC .6715(A) and (B)(l) through ([8]1), the 

following 



---------~-·,-

5 13 

excavation below finished grade for basements and 

other structure authorized by a valid building permit. This 

a building, 

not exempt any fill made 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

the material from such excavation, nor exempt any excavation having an unsupported 

height greater than five feet. 

(2) Cemetery graves, but not cemetery soil disposal sites. 

6 (3) Refuse disposal sites controlled by other regulations. 

7 (4) Excavations for wells. 

8 (5) Mineral extraction activities as regulated by MCC .7305 through .7335. 

9 (6) Exploratory excavations under the direction of certified engineering geologists or gec>rec 

10 engineers. 

11 (7) Routine agricultural crop management practices. 

12 

13 

(8) Emergency response activities intended to 

property, or flood or fire hazards. 

an danger to 

or 

14 .(2), Forest practices as defined by ORS 527 (State Forest Practices Act) and approved by the Oregon 

15 Department of Foreso:y. 

16 

17 11.15.6720 Application Information Required 

18 An application for development subject to the requirements of this subdistrict shall 

19 following: 

20 (A) A map showing the property line locations, roads and driveways, existing structures, trees 

21 inch or greater caliper or an outline of wooded areas, watercourses and include the location 

22 proposed development(s) and trees proposed for removal. 

23 (B) An estimate of depths and the extent and location of all proposed cuts and fills. 

24 (C) planned and existing sanitary drainfields and drywells. 

25 (D) Narrative, map or plan information to compliance with 

---~~ ------------
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 on 
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Grading and Control Permit Standards 

of development plans on subject to a Grading and Erosion Control 

that the nrnnnc following Conditions 

7 imposed to assure the meets the standards: 

8 Standards For Grading Erosion Control 

9 ( Grading Standards 

10 

11 

12 

13 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

Fill materials, compaction methods and specifications shall be indicated. areas 

intended to suppon structures shall be identified on plan. Director or 

may additional studies or information or work fill 

compaction; 

(b) Cut and fill slopes shall not be steeper than 3:1 unless a geological and/or 

analysis that slopes are safe and erosion measures are specified; 

fills not endanger or disturb adjoining property; 

(d) proposed drainage shall have to 

<:rrP,~rn flow from a storm 

on natural watercourses or 

"'"""'"'~'." frequency; 

channels unless measures 

handle a storm 

22 (2)Erosion Control Standards 

(a) On sites within Tualatin River Drainage 

shall satisfy the of OAR 340[ -41 Erosion Control 

Technical Guidance Handbook (November, 1989) is available to assist applicants 

meeting 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

13 

14 

15 

18 

21 

Page 7 13 

bank of a stream. or the ordinary high watermark Cline of vegetation) of a water body, or 

within 100-feet of a wetland: unless a mitigation plan consistent with OAR 340 is 

approved for alterations within the buffer area. 

(b) Stripping of vegetation, grading, or other soil disturbance shall be done a manner which 

will minimize soil erosion, stabilize the soil as quickly as practicable, and expose 

smallest practical area at any one time during construction; 

(c) Development Plans shall minimize cut or fill operations and ensure conformity with 

topography so as to create the least erosion potential and adequately accommodate the 

volume and velocity of surface runoff; 

(d) Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to protect exposed critical areas 

during development; 

(e) Whenever feasible, natural vegetation shall be retained, protected, and supplemented; 

(f) Permanent plantings and any required structural erosion control and drainage measures 

shall be installed as soon as practical; 

(g) Provisions shall be made to effectively accommodate increased runoff caused by 

soil and surface conditions during and after development The rate of surface water 

shall be structurally retarded where necessary; 

(h) Sediment in the water be trapped by use of debris traps, or 

measures until the area is stabilized; 

(i) Provisions shall be to prevent surface water from damaging the cut 

excavations or the sloping surface of fills by installation of temporary or 

drainage across or above such areas, or by other suitable stabilization measures as 

mulching or seeding; 

(j) All drainage provisions to adequately carry existing 

runoff to suitable as storm drains, natural 
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13 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

25 

(k) 

or an approved 

drainage 

as 

are used to divert 

to minimize potential 

8 13 

be or 

and control 

polluting discharges from occurring. Control devices 

to 

measures which 

but are not to: 

(i) absorbing devices to reduce runoff water 

(ii) Sedimentation controls such as sediment or debris Any trapped materials 

be removed to an approved disposal site on an .,.'\?, .. ,,,.,., schedule; 

(iii)Dispersal of water runoff from developed areas over large undisturbed areas. 

(m)Disposed spoil material or stockpiled topsoil shall be prevented from eroding into streams 

or drainageways by applying mulch or other protective covering; or location at a 

streams or or 

measures; 

(n) non-erosion pollution associated with construction as 

petrochemicals, wastes, or wastewaters 

from construction 

monitoring and activities. 

(B) Responsibility 

(1) iS \.<tl.Ul;:>;1;'U or it 

shall corporation or 

to remove it from all adjoining ''"""'"""'< and drainage systems prior to of 

or final project; 

(2) It any person, corporation or other act on or across a 

communal stream watercourse or swale, or upon the floodplain or thereof, to 

as as in state the watercourse, or 
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1 

2 

right-of-way during such activity, and to return it to its 

(C) Implementation 

or equal condition. 

3 ( 1) Performance Bond - performance bond may be to assure the full cost 

4 required erosion and sediment control measures. bond may be used to provide for the 

5 installation of the measures not completed by the contractor. The bond shall 

6 upon determination the the control measures have or can be expected to perform satisfactorily. 

7 The bond may be waived if the Director determines the scale and duration of the project and 

8 the potential problems arising therefrom will be minor. 

9 (2) Inspection and Enforcement. The requirements of this subdistrict shall be enforced by the 

10 Planning Director. If inspection by County staff reveals erosive conditions which exceed those 

11 prescribed by the Hillside Development Permit or Grading and Erosion Control Permit, work 

be stopped until appropriate measures are '"''-'·'uuu .. 

13 (D) Final Approvals 

A certificate of Occupancy or 

15 provisions of this subdistrict only upon satisfactory completion all applicable requirements. 

16 

17 11.15.6735 Hillside Development and Erosion Control Related Definitions: 

18 Certified Engineering Geologist Any person who has ""'tl"'"" 

19 Oregon as an engineering geologist. 

20 (B) Cut: 

21 (1) An excavation; 

24 

difference between a point on 

on the final grade; 

The material removed in excavation work. 

Development Area - The total area 

ground surface 

the naturally 

by State of 

the point of lowest elevation 



1 

2 

3 

Area - The subject property together with the watershed 

runoff to and receiving water runoff from the property. 

or 

4 water-course. 

13 

water 

or 

5 (F) Earth Movement- Any type of land surface failure resulting in the downslope movement 

6 term 

7 landslides. 

8 (G) Erosion -The wearing away or removal of earth surface materials by the action of natural elements 

9 

11 

12 

13 (I) 

or forces including, but not wind, water or gravity. 

Excavation - Any act by which or any similar is dug 

quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, relocated or bulldozed, including the conditions 

therefrom. 

cut, 

14 (1) Any act by which earth, rock or similar material pushed, placed, dumped, 

15 stacked, pulled, transported, or in any way moved to a new location above the natural 

16 of the ground or on top of a stripped surface, including 

17 therefrom. 

18 

21 

(2) The difference in elevation 

... ,.., .. _. elevation on a 

used to 

Geotechnical Engineer -

training, education and .,.v ..... , • .,.., 

Geotechnical Report 

a point on the original ground surface and the point of 

grade. 

licensed to practice in the Oregon, who 

is competent in the practice of geotechnical or soils 

required addition to Form 1 which 

geotechnical conditions of a proposed development site. Examples of this would 

the 

on test 

borings, laboratory tests or materials, or hydrologic studies. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Grading - Any stripping, cutting, .u.-, .. z,, stockpiling or any combination 

in its cut or filled condition. 

HDP Form-1- The for specified developments to 

and Erosion Control subdistrict. It contains a geotechnical 

questionnaire which must be filled out and certified a Certified 

Geotechnical Engineer. 
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or 

(N) [Landscaping Activities - The artistic adornment or improvement of a section of ground or 

contouring the land and by planting flowers, shrubs, trees, lawns or groundcover plants.] 

disturbing Activities Any act which alters earth. sand. mvel. or similar materials and exposes the 

same to the elements of wind. water. or mvity. Land-disturbing activities include: excavations or 

fills. site grading. tree clearing. and soil storage. 

(0) Mulch- Materials spread over the surface of the ground, especially freshly graded or 

to prevent physical damage from erosive agents such as storm water, precipitation or wind, and 

which shield soil surfaces until vegetative cover or other stabilization measures can take 

(P) Ordinary High Water Mark Features found by examining the bed and banks of a stream and 

ascertaining where the presence and action of waters are so common and usual. and so long 

maintained in all orciinazy years. as to mark upon the land a character distinct from that of the 

abutting upland. particularly with respect to vegetation. For streams where such features cannot be 

found. the channel bank shall be substituted. In braided channels and alluvial fans. the ordinary 

high wruer mark shall be measured to include the entire stream feature. 

([P] .Q) Slope: 

(1) Any ground whose surface makes an angle from the horizontal; or 

{2) The face of an embankment or cut section. 

([Q] B.) Slope Hazard Map- of maps (Figures lA. through 6A.) prepared by Shannon 

Wilson. Inc., dated September, 1 

Environmental Services; 

and on file in the Office of the 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

13 

14 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

________ " ______ _ 

CU) 
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£) Spoil Material - Any rock, sand, gravel, or other earth or 

other activities. 

loosely rooted ve~etation by the action of moving watet The channel or bed need not contain 

runoff devices or other entirely artificial watercourses unless they are used to convey Class l or 2 

streams naturally occurrin~ prior to construction. Those tcwographic features resembling streams 

but whjch have no defined channels (e.~. swales) shall be considered streams when hydrologic and 

hydraulic analyses perfonned pursuant to a development proposal predict fonnation of a defined 

channel after development. 

Stream Protection - Activities or conditions which avoid or lessen adverse water guality and 

([S] YJ Topographic Information - Surveyed information which details contour 

intervals drainageways. Topographic information shall be prepared by a registered land 

surveyor or a 

on maps with a contour 

YiJ Vegetation - plant growth, especially trees, 

Vegetative Protection - Stabilization of 

with: 

grasses and mosses. 

or sediment-producing areas 

cover; 

cover; 
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2 (Z) Watercourse - Natural and artificial features which transpon surface water. Watercourse includes a 

3 river. stream. creek. sloug;h. ditch. canal. or drainageway. 

4 

5 

6 

8 This ordinance, being necessary for the health, safety, and general welfare of the people of 

9 Multnomah County, an emergency is declared and the Ordinance shall effect upon its execution by the 

10 County Chair, pursuant to Section 5.50 of the Charter of Mulmomah County. 

11 ADOPTED THIS ____ day of------- being the 

12 reading before the Board of County Commissioners of Mulmomah 

13 

14 (SEAL) 

15 

16 

18 

19 

20 

21 

of Mulmomah County, Oregon 

By ------------------------
Gladys McCoy, County Chair 

MULTNOMAH COU~TY, OREGON 

its __ 
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1 BEFORE Tiffi BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

2 FOR MUL'INOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 

3 ORDINANCE NO. 6 77 

4 

5 An Ordinance amending the Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 by amending 

6 regulations applicable to grading and filling activities, and clarifying standards applicable to 

7 land disturbing activities within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin, and declaring an 

8 emergency. 

9 (Language in brackets [ ] is to be deleted; underlined sections are new text.) 

10 Multnomah County Ordains as follows: 

11 

12 Section I. Findings. 

13 (A). On August 3, 1989, the State of Oregon Environmental Quality Commission 

14 (EQC) promulgated rules for the Tualatin River Basin that requires Multnomah County and all 

15 other counties and cities within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin to submit plans for control 

16 of urban storm runoff. Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 340-41-470(3)(g) states: "Within 

17 18 months after adoption of these rules, Washington, Clackamas, Multnomah Counties and all 

18 incorporated cities within the Tualatin River and Oswego Lake subbasins shall submit to the 

19 Department a program plan for controlling the quality of urban storm runoff within their 

20 respective jurisdictions to comply with the requirements of sections (a) and (b) of this rule." 

21 (B). Multnomah County Ordinance Number 643 amended MCC 11.15 (adopted 

22 February 20, 1990). These County Zoning Ordinance amendments were in part adopted to 

23 address 1989 OAR provisions regarding erosion control within the Tualatin Basin. Ordinance 

24 643 added a "Hillside Development and Erosion Control" subsection to the Multnomah 

25 County Zoning Ordinance (MCC 11.15.6700 -.6735). The subsection requires a "Grading and 

26 Erosion Control Permit" for most land disturbing activities within the Tualatin Basin. 
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(C). The State of Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) has indicated 

2 that implementing code provisions in MCC 11.15 do not sufficiently address all of the 1989 

3 OAR 340 provisions. The County Zoning Code does not address storm water runoff and 

4 protection of streams and drainageways within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin. DEQ 

5 indicates that applicable OAR's can be addressed through text amendments to the Hillside 

6 Development and Erosion Control subsection of MCC 11.15. 

7 (D). To avoid potential enforcement proceedings by DEQ, it is necessary to amend 

8 MCC Chapter 11.15 regarding erosion control and storm water runoff provisions applicable 

9 within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin. 

10 (E). An emergency is declared because Multnomah County has not met the OAR 

11 340 schedule of compliance. 

12 (F). The State Department of Forestry requests text and format revisions to the 

13 "Exemptions" subsection relating to Forest Practices (MCC 11.15.6715). 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Section II. Amendments. 

Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 is amended to read as follows: 

11.15.6700 Purposes 

The purposes of the Hillside Development and Erosion Control subdistrict are to promote 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

the public health, safety and general welfare, and minimize public and private losses due to 

earth movement hazards in specified areas and minimize erosion and related environmental 

damage in unincorporated Multnomah County, all in accordance with ORS 215, LCDC 

Statewide Planning Goal No.7 and OAR 340-41-455 for the Tualatin River Basin, and the 

Multnomah County Comprehensive Framework Plan Policy No. 14. This subdistrict is 

intended to: 

(A) Protect human life; 
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1 (B) Protect property and structures; 

2 (C) Minimize expenditures for rescue and relief efforts associated with earth 

3 movement failures; 

4 (D) Control erosion, production and transport of sediment; and 

5 (E) Regulat~: land development actions including excavation and fills, drainage controls and 

6 protect exposed soil surfaces from erosive forces. 

7 .(E.}. Control stonnwater dischari!eS and protect streams. ponds. and wetlands within the 

8 Iualatin River Drainage Basin. 

9 

10 11.15.6710 Permits Required 

11 (A) All persons proposing development, construction, or site clearing (including tree 

12 removal) on property located in hazard areas as identified on the "Slope Hazard Map", 

13 or on lands with average slopes of 25 percent or more shall obtain a Hillside 

14 Development Permit as prescribed by this subdistrict, unless specifically exempted by 

15 MCC .6715. 

16 (B) All persons proposing site grading where the volume of soil or earth material disturbed, 

17 stored, disposed of or used as fill exceeds 50 cubic yards, or which obstruct or alter a 

18 drainage course [or on any sites within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin], shall obtain 

19 a Grading and Erosion Control Permit as prescribed by this subdistrict, unless exempted 

20 by MCC .6715(B)(2) through (8) or .6715(C). Development projects subject to a 

21 Hillside Development Permit do not require a separate Grading and Erosion Control 

22 Permit. 

23 !.5:.1 All persons proposing land-disturbing activities within the Iualatin River Drainage 

24 Basin shall first obtain a Grading and Erosion Control Pennit. exc~t as provided by 

25 MCC 11.15.6715CC) below. 

26 
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1 11.15.6715 Exempt Land Uses and Activities 

The following are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter: 2 

3 (A) Development activities approved prior to February 20, 1990; except that within such a 

4 development, issuance of individual building permits for which application was made after 

5 February 20, 1990 shall conform to site-specific requirements applicable herein. 

6 (B) General Exemptions- [All land-disturbing or land-filling activities or soil storage] Outside the 

7 Tualatin River Draina~e Basin. allland-disturbin~ activities outlined below shall be undertaken in a 

8 manner designed to minimize earth movement hazards, surface runoff, erosion, and sedimentation 

9 and to safeguard life, limb, property, and the public welfare. A person performing such activities 

10 need not apply for a permit pursuant to this subdistrict, if: 

11 (1) Natural and finished slopes will be less than 25 %; .and. 

12 (2) The disturbed or filled area is 20,000 square feet or less; .and. 

13 (3) The volume of soil or earth materials to be stored is 50 cubic yards or less; .and. 

14 (4) Rainwater runoff is diverted, either during or after construction, from an area smaller than 

15 10,000 square feet; .and. 

16 (5) Impervious surfaces, if any, of less than 10,000 square feet are to be created; .and. 

17 (6) No drainageway is to be blocked or have its stormwater carrying capacities or characteristics 

18 modified; .and. 

19 (7) The activity will not take place within 100 feet by horizontal measurement from the top of the 

20 bank of a watercourse, the mean high watermark (line of vegetation) of a body of water ,or 

21 within the wetlands associated with a watercourse or water body, whichever distance is 

22 greater[; and] ... 

23 [(8) Any tree clearing work will be subject to the State Forest Practices Act.] 

24 

25 (C) Categorical Exemptions -Notwithstanding MCC .6715(A) and (B)(l) through ([8]1), the 

26 following activities are exempt from the permit requirements: 
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(1) An excavation below finished grade for basements and footings of a building, retaining wall, or 

2 other structure authorized by a valid building permit. This shall not exempt any fill made with 

3 the material from such excavation, nor exempt any excavation having an unsupported finished 

4 height greater than five feet. 

5 (2) Cemetery graves, but not cemetery soil disposal sites. 

6 (3) Refuse disposal sites controlled by other regulations. 

7 (4) Excavations for wells. 

8 (5) Mineral extraction activities as regulated by MCC .7305 through .7335. 

9 (6) Exploratory excavations under the direction of certified engineering geologists or geotechnical 

I 0 engineers. 

11 (7) Routine agricultural crop management practices. 

12 (8) Emergency response activities intended to reduce or eliminate an immediate danger to life, 

13 property, or flood or fire hazards. 

14 !2.1 forest practices as defined by ORS 527 (State Forest Practices Act) and approved by the Ore~on 

15 Department of Foresny. 

16 

17 11.15.6720 Application Information Required 

18 An application for development subject to the requirements of this subdistrict shall include the 

19 following: 

20 (A) A map showing the property line locations, roads and driveways, existing structures, trees with 8-

21 inch or greater caliper or an outline of wooded areas, watercourses and include the location of the 

22 proposed development(s) and trees proposed for removal. 

23 (B) An estimate of depths and the extent and location of all proposed cuts and fills. 

24 (C) The location of planned and existing sanitary drainfields and drywells. 

25 (D) [Additional n] Narrative, map or plan information necessary to demonstrate compliance with MCC 

26 .6730(A). The application shall provide applicable supplemental reports. certifications. or plans 
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1 relative to: en~ineerin~. soil characteristics. stormwater draina~e. stream protection. erosion 

2 control. and/or replantin~. 

3 

4 11.15.6730 Grading and Erosion Control Permit Standards 

5 Approval of development plans on sites subject to a Grading and Erosion Control Permit shall be based 

6 on fmdings that the proposal adequately addresses the following standards. Conditions of approval may 

7 be imposed to assure the design meets the standards: 

8 (A) Design Standards For Grading and Erosion Control 

9 (1) Grading Standards 

10 (a) Fill materials, compaction methods and density specifications shall be indicated. Fill areas 

11 intended to support structures shall be identified on the plan. The Director or delegate 

12 may require additional studies or information or work regarding fill materials and 

13 compaction; 

14 (b) Cut and fill slopes shall not be steeper than 3:1 unless a geological and/or engineering 

15 analysis certifies that steep slopes are safe and erosion control measures are specified; 

16 (c) Cuts and fills shall not endanger or disturb adjoining property; 

17 (d) The proposed drainage system shall have adequate capacity to bypass through the 

18 development the existing upstream flow from a storm of 10-year design frequency; 

19 (e) Fills shall not encroach on natural watercourses or constructed channels unless measures 

20 are approved which will adequately handle the displaced streamflow for a storm of 10-year 

21 design frequency; 

22 (2)Erosion Control Standards 

23 (a) On sites within the Tualatin River Drainage Basin, erosion and stormwater control plans 

24 shall satisfy the requirements of OAR 340[-41-455]. [An Erosion Control Plans 

25 Technical Guidance Handbook (November, 1989) is available to assist applicants in 

26 meeting State erosion control standards in the Tualatin Basin.} Land-disturbin~ activities 
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23 
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25 

26 
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within the Tualatin Basin shall provide a 100-foot undisturbed buffer from the top of the 

bank of a Stream. or the ordinary hi~h watermark (line of ye~etation) of a water body. or 

within 100-feet of a wetland: unless a miti~ation plan consistent with OAR 340 is 

approved for alterations within the buffer area. 

(b) Stripping of vegetation, grading, or other soil disturbance shall be done in a manner which 

will minimize soil erosion, stabilize the soil as quickly as practicable, and expose the 

smallest practical area at any one time during construction; 

(c) Development Plans shall minimize cut or fill operations and ensure conformity with 

topography so as to create the least erosion potential and adequately accommodate the 

volume and velocity of surface runoff; 

(d) Temporary vegetation and/or mulching shall be used to protect exposed critical areas 

during development; 

(e) Whenever feasible, natural vegetation shall be retained, protected, and supplemented; 

(f) Permanent plantings and any required structural erosion control and drainage measures 

shall be installed as soon as practical; 

(g) Provisions shall be made to effectively accommodate increased runoff caused by altered 

soil and surface conditions during and after development The rate of surface water runoff 

shall be structurally retarded where necessary; 

(h) Sediment in the runoff water shall be trapped by use of debris basins, silt traps, or other 

measures until the disturbed area is stabilized; 

(i) Provisions shall be made to prevent surface water from damaging the cut face of 

excavations or the sloping surface of fills by installation of temporary or permanent 

drainage across or above such areas, or by other suitable stabilization measures such as 

mulching or seeding; 

(j) All drainage provisions shall be designed to adequately carry existing and potential surface 

runoff to suitable drainageways such as storm drains, natural watercourses, drainage 
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1 swales, or an approved drywell system; 

2 (k) Where drainage swales are used to divert surface waters, they shall be vegetated or 

3 protected as required to minimize potential erosion; 

4 (1) Erosion and sediment control devices shall be required where necessary to prevent 

5 polluting discharges from occurring. Control devices and measures which may be 

6 required include, but are not limited to: 

7 (i) Energy absorbing devices to reduce runoff water velocity; 

8 (ii) Sedimentation controls such as sediment or debris basins. Any trapped materials shall 

9 be removed to an approved disposal site on an approved schedule; 

10 (iii)Dispersal of water runoff from developed areas over large undisturbed areas. 

11 (m)Disposed spoil material or stockpiled topsoil shall be prevented from eroding into streams 

12 or drainageways by applying mulch or other protective covering; or by location at a 

13 sufficient distance from streams or drainageways; or by other sediment reduction 

14 measures; 

15 (n) Such non-erosion pollution associated with construction such as pesticides, fertilizers, 

16 petrochemicals, solid wastes, construction chemicals, or wastewaters shall be prevented 

17 from leaving the construction site through proper handling, disposal, continuous site 

18 monitoring and clean-up activities. 

19 (B) Responsibility 

20 (1) Whenever sedimentation is caused by stripping vegetation, regrading or other development, it 

21 shall be the responsibility of the person, corporation or other entity causing such sedimentation 

22 to remove it from all adjoining surfaces and drainage systems prior to issuance of occupancy 

23 or final approvals for the project; 

24 (2) It is the responsibility of any person, corporation or other entity doing any act on or across a 

25 communal stream watercourse or swale, or upon the floodplain or right-of-way thereof, to 

26 maintain as nearly as possible in its present state the stream, watercourse, swale, floodplain, or 
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1 right-of-way during such activity, and to return it to its original or equal condition. 

2 (C) Implementation 

3 (1) Performance Bond- A performance bond may be required to assure the full cost of any 

4 required erosion and sediment control measures. The bond may be used to provide for the 

5 installation of the measures if not completed by the contractor. The bond shall be released 

6 upon determination the the control measures have or can be expected to perform satisfactorily. 

7 The bond may be waived if the Director determines the scale and duration of the project and 

8 the potential problems arising therefrom will be minor. 

9 (2) Inspection and Enforcement. The requirements of this subdistrict shall be enforced by the 

10 Planning Director. If inspection by County staff reveals erosive conditions which exceed those 

11 prescribed by the Hillside Development Permit or Grading and Erosion Control Permit, work 

12 may be stopped until appropriate correction measures are completed. 

13 (D) Final Approvals 

14 A certificate of Occupancy or other fmal approval shall be granted for development subject to the 

15 provisions of this subdistrict only upon satisfactory completion of all applicable requirements. 

16 

17 11.15.6735 Hillside Development and Erosion Control Related Definitions: 

18 (A) Certified Engineering Geologist- Any person who has obtained certification by the State of 

19 Oregon as an engineering geologist. 

20 (B) Cut: 

21 ( 1) An excavation; 

22 (2) The difference between a point on the original ground surface and the point of lowest elevation 

23 on the final grade; 

24 (3) The material removed in excavation work. 

25 (C) Development Area - The total area of alteration of the naturally occurring ground surface resulting 

26 from construction activities whether permanent or temporary. 
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1 (D) Drainage Area -The subject property together with the watershed (acreage) contributing water 

2 runoff to and receiving water runoff from the subject property. 

3 (E) Drainageway - Any natural or artificial stream, swale, creek, river, ditch, channel, canal or other 

4 open water-course. 

5 (F) Earth Movement- Any type of land surface failure resulting in the downslope movement of 

6 material . The term includes, but is not limited to, soil creep, mudflow, rockslides, block failures, 

7 and massive landslides. 

8 (G) Erosion -The wearing away or removal of earth surface materials by the action of natural elements 

9 or forces including, but not limited to, wind, water or gravity. 

10 (H) Excavation - Any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock or any similar material is dug into, cut, 

11 quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, relocated or bulldozed, including the conditions resulting 

12 therefrom. 

13 (I) Fill: 

14 (1) Any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock or similar material is pushed, placed, dumped, 

15 stacked, pulled, transported, or in any way moved to a new location above the existing natural 

16 surface of the ground or on the top of a stripped surface, including the condition resulting 

17 therefrom. 

18 (2) The difference in elevation between a point on the original ground surface and the point of 

19 higher elevation on a finished grade. 

20 (3) The material used to make a filL 

21 (J) Geotechnical Engineer- A Civil Engineer, licensed to practice in the State of Oregon, who by 

22 training, education and experience is competent in the practice of geotechnical or soils engineering 

23 practices. 

24 (K) Geotechnical Report - Any information required in addition to Form 1 which clarifies the 

25 geotechnical conditions of a proposed development site. Examples of this would be reports on test 

26 hole borings, laboratory tests or analysis of materials, or hydrologic studies. 
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1 (L) Grading -Any stripping, cutting, filling, stockpiling or any combination thereof, including the land 

2 in its cut or filled condition. 

3 (M) HDP Form-1- The form required for specified developments subject to the Hillside Development 

4 and Erosion Control subdistrict. It contains a geotechnical reconnaissance and stability 

5 questionnaire which must be filled out and certified by a Certified Engineering Geologist or 

6 Geotechnical Engineer. 

7 (N) [Landscaping Activities- The artistic adornment or improvement of a section of ground or site by 

8 contouring the land and by planting flowers, shrubs, trees, lawns or groundcover plants.] Lmld::. 

9 disturbing Activities -Any act which alters earth. sand. grayel. or similar materials and exposes the 

10 same to the elements of wind. water. or gravity. Land-disturbin~ activities include: excavations or 

11 fills. site gradin~. tree clearin~. and soil storage. 

12 (0) Mulch- Materials spread over the surface of the ground, especially freshly graded or exposed soils, 

13 to prevent physical damage from erosive agents such as storm water, precipitation or wind, and 

14 which shield soil surfaces until vegetative cover or other stabilization measures can take effect. 

15 (P) Ordinary High Water Mark - Features found by examinin~ the bed and banks of a stream and 

16 ascenainin~ where the presence and action of waters are so common and usual. and so long 

17 maintained in all ordinary years. as to mark upon the land a character distinct from that of the 

18 abutting upland. particularly with re:mect to vegetation. For streams where such features cannot be 

19 found. the channel bank shall be substituted. In braided channels and alluvial fans. the ordinary 

20 high water mark shall be measured to include the entire stream feature. 

21 ([P] Q) Slope: 

22 (1) Any ground whose surface makes an angle from the horizontal; or 

23 (2) The face of an embankment or cut section. 

24 ([Q] ID Slope Hazard Map - A series of maps (Figures 1A. through 6A.) prepared by Shannon & 

25 Wilson, Inc., dated September, 1978, and on file in the Office of the Director, Department of 

26 Environmental Services; 



Page 12 of 13 

1 ([R] S.) Spoil Material Any rock, sand, gravel, soil or other earth material removed by excavation or 

2 other grading activities. 

3 (T) Stream -Areas where surface waters flow sufficient to produce a defined channel or bed. A defined 

4 channel or bed is indicated by hydraulically sorted sediments or the removal of ve~etative litter or 

5 loosely rooted vegetation by the action of movin~ water. The channel or bed need not contain 

6 water year-round. This definition is not meant to include irrigation ditches. canals. stormwater 

7 runoff devices or other entirely artificial watercourses unless they are used to convey Class 1 or 2 

8 streams naturally occurrin~ prior to construction. Those topographic features resemblin~ streams 

9 but which have no defined channels Ce.~. swales) shall be considered streams when hydrolo~ic and 

10 hydraulic analyses perfonned pursuant to a development proposal predict fonnation of a defined 

11 channel after development. 

12 (U) Stream Protection Activities or conditions which avoid or lessen adverse water Quality and 

13 turbidity effects to a stream. 

14 ([S] Y.) Topographic Information - Surveyed elevation information which details slopes, contour 

15 intervals and drainageways. Topographic information shall be prepared by a registered land 

16 surveyor or a registered professional engineer qualified to provide such information and represented 

17 on maps with a contour interval not to exceed 10 feet. 

18 ([T] ID Vegetation- All plant growth, especially trees, shrubs, grasses and mosses. 

19 ([U] X) Vegetative Protection - Stabilization of erosive or sediment-producing areas by covering the 

20 soil with: 

21 (1) Permanent seeding, producing long-term vegetative cover; 

22 (2) Short-term seeding, producing temporary vegetative cover; 

23 (3) Sodding, producing areas covered with a turf or perennial sod-forming grass; or 

24 (4) Netting with seeding if the final grade has not stabilized. 

25 (Y) Water Body -Areas permanently or temporarily flooded which may exceed the deepwater boundary 

26 of wetlands. Water depth is such that water. and not the air. is the principal medium in which 
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prevalent or~anisms live. Water bodies include rivers. creeks. lakes. and ponds. 

2 (Zl Watercourse- Natural and artificial features which transport surface water. Watercourse includes a 

3 river. stream. creek. slou~h. ditch. canal. or draina~eway. 

4 

5 

6 

7 Section Ill. Ad<wtion. 

8 This ordinance, being necessary for the health, safety, and general welfare of the people of 

9 Multnomah County, an emergency is declared and the Ordinance shall take effect upon its execution by the 

10 County Chair, pursuant to Section 5.50 of the Charter of Multnomah County. 

11 

12 reading before the Board of County Commissioners of Multnomah County. 

\ ' '*_..,.,.,..... ( 

14 (SEAl:)~,~ , -· 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

REVIEWED: 



Meeting Date: _________ A_p_r_il __ 2_3_, __ 1_9_9_1 __ __ 

Agenda No.: ___________ ~_1: __ -~~------
(Above space for Clerk's Office Use) 

. I 

DEPARTMt:NT DES DIVISION ·Planning 
-------------------------- ------------------------------

CONTACT Gary Clifford TELEPHONE 6782 
------------------------------ -----------------------------

PERSON(S) MAKING PRESENTATION Clifford 
----------------------------------------------

ACTION REQUESTED: 

INFORMATIONAL ONLY POLICY DIRECTION APPROVAL 

ESTIMATED TIME NEEDED ON BOARD AGENDA: Minutes 
--~~-----------------------------

CHECK IF YOU REQUIRE OFFICIAL vmiTTEN NOTICE OF ACTION TAKEN: xx 

BRIEF SUMMARY (include statement of rationale for action requested, 
as we . as personnel and fiscal etary impacts, if applicable): 

C 3-9la First 

An Ordinance Amending MCC 11.15 to Restrict Application 
of the Planned-Development Subdistrict to the Urban and 
RC, RR and MUA-20 Rural Districts 

(If space is inad ate, please use other side) 

SIGNATURES: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL ----------------------------------------------------------
Or 

DEPARTMENT MANAGE 

(Al ac nying ired signatures) 
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C 3-91a 

Department of Environmental Services 
Division of Planning and Development 

2115 S.E. Morrison Street 
Portland, Oregon 97214 (503) 248-3043 

Staff Report 

This Staff Report consists of Findings of Fact and Conclusions 

April 1, 1991 

Adoption of an Ordinance Amending MCC Chapter 11.15 
to Restrict Application of the Planned Development Subdistrict 

to the Urban and RC, RR and MUA-20 Rural Districts 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Recommend Approval to the Board of County Commissioners of the Ordinance which amends 
MCC Chapter 11.15 by restricting the Planned Development Subdistrict to the urban and RC, RR 
and MUA-20 rural districts. 

Findings of Fact: 

1. Revisions of the Zoning Code concerning Planned Developments. 

A. The 1990 Multnomah County Ordinance Number 643 included amendments to MCC Chap­
ter 11.15 that eliminated the Rural Planned Development (RPD) Subdistrict and permitted 
the Planned Development (PD) Subdistrict to be applied in the Rural Center (RC), Rural 
Residential (RR), and Multiple Use Agriculture (MUA) rural "exception" zoning districts. 
Previously, the PD Subdistrict had been applied only to urban zoning districts. 

B. The 1990 amendments to the Planned Development Subdistrict attempted to exclude the PD 
provisions from being applied in the rural fann and forest resource protection zoning dis­
tricts. The "resource" zoning districts are the Exclusive Fann Use (EFU), Commercial For­
est Use (CFU) and Multiple Use Forest (MUF). 

C. The 1990 Planned Development amendment language is underlined as follows: 

11.15.6222 Permitted Uses 

In an underlying residential district, the following uses may be permitted in a 
Planned Development District: 

---------------------------~ 



(A)Housing types may include single family detached or attached dwellings, , 
duplexes, row houses, town houses or apartments, except that in the 
MUA-20. RR and RC districts only duplexes and single family detached or 
attached dwellings are permitted. 

D. The amendments were a result of the Periodic Review study of "Changes in Circumstances" 
completed for the State of Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development 
(DLCD). Part of that study included an examination of the number of "non-resource 
dwellings" that had been approved in farm and forest zones. Such dwellings are not in com­
pliance with the resource lands preservation strategies of Statewide Planning Goals 3, Agri­
cultural Land and 4, Forest Lands. In the Periodic Review Order and in personal contact 
with DLCD staff it was acknowledged that "non-resource dwellings" would result from 
planned developments which created small new lots for homes which had only a divided 
interest in the larger farm or forest "common area tract". 

County Counsel has recently advised that the existing code language would, even after the 
1990 amendment, allow the Planned Development Subdistrict to be applied in the resource 
protection zoning districts. Therefore, subsection MCC 11.15.6201 added which specifi­
cally excludes the EFU, CFU and MUF zoning districts from list of zoning districts in 
which the Planned Development Subdistrict may apply. 

The Planned Development Subdistrict may only be applied in all urban districts 
and in the MUA-20. RR and RC rural districts. 

Conclusion: 

1. The proposed Code amendment adding clearer language to the Planned Development Subdistrict 
will satisfy the commitment made in the 1990 Periodic Review Order to allow this type of devel­
opment only in the urban and rural "exception" zoning districts. 

Staff Report 
April 1, 1991 2 

C3-91 



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
FOR MULTNOMAH COUNTY 

In the Matter of Recommending Adoption of an ) 
Ordinance Amending MCC Chapter 11.15 to ) 
Restrict Application of the Planned Development) 
Subdistrict to the Urban and RC, RR and ) 
MUA-20 Rural Districts ) 

RESOLUTION 
C 3-91a 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission is authorized by Multnomah County Code, Chapter 
11.05 and by ORS 215.110, to recommend to the Board of County Commissioners 
the adoption of Ordinances to carry out the Multnomah County Comprehensive 
Plan; and 

WHEREAS, The 1990 Ordinance Number 643 included an amendment to the Planned Devel­
opment Subdistrict which attempted to restrict the Subdistrict from applying to 
rural farm and forest "resource" zoning districts and also allow the Subdistrict in 
the rural "exception" districts; and 

WHEREAS, County Counsel has advised that the existing language in the Planned Develop­
ment section of MCC Chapter 11.15 is not sufficiently clear to prevent the Subdis­
trict from being applied in farm and forest resource protection districts; and 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission considered this Ordinance at a public hearing on April 
1, 1991 where all interested persons were given an opportunity to appear and be 
heard, 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ordinance captioned "An Ordinance 
amending the Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 by restricting the Planned Development 
Subdistrict to the urban and RC, RR and MUA-20 rural districts" is hereby recommended for 
adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. 

Approved this 1st day of April, 1991 

RichardT. Leonard, 
Multnomah County Planning Commission 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

FOR MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 

ORDmANCENO. _______ _ 

Page 1 of3 

6 An Ordinance amending the Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 by restricting the 

7 Planned Development Subdistrict to the urban and RC, RR and MUA-20 rural districts. 

8 

9 (Language in brackets [ ] is to be deleted; underlined language is new.) 

10 Multnomah County Ordains as follows: 

11 

12 

13 Section I. Findin~s. 

14 

15 (A). The 1990 Multnomah County Ordinance Number 643 included amendments to 

16 MCC Chapter 11.15 that eliminated the Rural Planned Development (RPD) Subdistrict and 

17 permitted the Planned Development (PD) Subdistrict to be applied in the Rural Center (RC), 

18 Rural Residential (RR), and Multiple Use Agriculture (MUA) rural "exception" zoning 

19 districts. Previously, the PD Subdistrict had been applied only to urban zoning districts. 

20 

21 (B). The 1990 amendments to the Planned Development Subdistrict attempted to 

22 exclude the PD provisions from being applied in the rural farm and forest resource protection 

23 zoning districts. The "resource" zoning districts are the Exclusive Farm Use (EFU), 

24 Commercial Forest Use (CPU) and Multiple Use Forest (MUF). 

25 

26 



1 (C). The amendments were a result of the Periodic Review study of "Changes in 

2 Circumstances" completed for the State of Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 

3 Development (DLCD). Part of that study included an examination of the number of "non-

4 resource dwellings" that had been approved in farm and forest zones. Such dwellings are not 

5 in compliance with the resource lands preservation strategies of Statewide Planning Goals 3, 

6 Agricultural Land and 4, Forest Lands. In the Periodic Review Order and in personal contact 

7 with DLCD staff it was acknowledged that "non-resource dwellings" would result from 

8 planned developments which created small new lots for homes which had only a divided 

9 interest in the larger farm or forest "common area tract". 

10 

11 (D). County Counsel has recently advised that the existing code language would, even 

after the 1990 amendment, allow the Planned Development Subdistrict to be applied in the 

13 resource protection zoning districts. Therefore, subsection MCC 11.15.6201 is added which 

14 specifically excludes the EFU, CFU and MUF zoning districts from the of zoning districts 

15 in which the Planned Development Subdistrict may apply. 

16 

17 

18 Section II. Amendment. 

19 Multnomah County Code Chapter 11.15 is amended to read as follows: 

20 

21 11.15.6201 Areas Affected 

22 ~ Planned Development Subdistrict ~ ~ ~ applied in &l.w:llan. districts mld in .tM 

23 MUA-20. RR mld RC 1JJiill districts. 

24 

25 

26 
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1 Section III. Adoption. 

2 

3 This ordinance, being necessary for the health, safety, and general welfare of the people 

4 of Multnomah County, shall take effect on the thirtieth (30th) day after its adoption, pursuant to 

5 Section 5.50 of the Charter of Multnomah County. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

ADOPTED THIS ____ day of ---------• 199_, being the 

date of its ___ reading before the Board of County Commissioners of Multnomah County. 

(SEAL) 

REVIEWED: 

By ______________________ _ 

Gladys McCoy, County Chair 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OREGON 

22 John DuBay, Deputy County Counsel 

23 

24 

25 

ofMultnomah County, Oregon 



Agenda No. : _________ .....:._ _____ _ 

(Above space for Clerk's Office Use) 
,• 

SUBJECT: ___ P_u_b_l_i_c_H_e_a_r_in_g __________________________ _ 

April 23, 1991 

DEPARTMCNT DES DIVISION ------------------------ -------------------------
CONTACT Sharon Cowley TELEPHONE 2610 

---------------------------- --------------------------
PERSON(S) MAKING PRESENTATION R. Scott Pemble 

-----------------------------------------
ACTION REQUESTED: 

INFORMATIONAL ONLY POLICY DIRECTION Jl.PPROVAL 

ESTH1ATED TIME NEEDED ON BOARD AGENDA: 1 Minute --------------------------------
CHECK IF YOU REQUIRE OFFICIAL WRITTEN NOTICE OF ACTION TAKEN: ----
BRIEF SU~1MARY (include statement of rationale for action requested, 
as we as personnel and fiscal/bu etary impacts, if applicable): 

Auto i.Jrecker' s License Renewal 

13231 SE Division Street ion Street Auto Parts 

Recommendation of 

til 

(If space 1s inadequate, please use other side) 

SIGNATURES: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL 
-----------------------------~-----------------

Or 

DEPARTMENT MANAGE 

( A ll. a c corn pan 

1/90 



mULTnOmRH COUnTY OREGOn 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PLANNING 
AND DEVELOPMENT 
2115 S£ MORRISON STREET . 
PORTLAND, OREGON 97214 
(503) 248-3043 

Honorable Board of County Commissioners 
Room 605, Multnomah County Courthouse 
1021 SW Fourth Avenue 
Portland, Oregon 97204 

RE: Auto Wrecker's License -Renewal 

Division Street Auto Parks 
U-Pull It Division 
13231 SE Division Street 

Recommend: Approval of Business Location 

Dear Commissioners: 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
GLADYS McCOY • CHAIR OF THE BOARD 

PAULINE ANDERSON • DISTRICT 1 COMMISSIONER 
GARY HANSEN • DISTRICT 2 COMMISSIONER 
RICK BAUMAN • DISTRICT 3 COMMISSIONER 

SHARRON KELLEY • DISTRICT 4 COMMISSIONER 

March 28, 1991 

The staff of the Division of Planning and Development respectfully recommends that the above 
license be approved, based upon findings that they satisfy the location requirements for same as 
contained in ORS 822.10 and .135. 

UNTY DIVISION OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

RNH:sec 

Enclosure - Wrecker's Application 

AN E:OUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 



MEMORANDUM 

Multnomah County 
Sheriff's Office 

12240 N.E. GLISAN ST., PORTLAND, OREGON 97230 

ROBERT G. SKIPPER 
SHERIFF 

(503) 255-3600 

-------------~-----------------------------------------------------------------

TO: SHARON COWLEY 
Administrative Assistant 

FROM: DEPUTY H. HAIGH 
In lligence Unit 

DATE: March 7, 1991 

SUBJ RECORDS LICENSE RENEWAL 

Attached is an Application for Business Certificate as a Wrecker of Motor 
Vehicles for Division et Au Parts, 13231 SE Division, Portland, Oregon 
The Sheriff's Office recommends the license be approved as long as zoning 
requirements have been satisfied. 

Thank you for your tention. 

KF/slr/417-AINT 

Attachment 

11 1991 

Multnomah County 
Zonmg DivisiOn 



OREGON MOTOR VEHICLES! DIVISION 
1905LANA AVE.,NE, SALEM OR i7314 

APPLICATION FOR BUSINESS CERTIFICATE 
AS A WRECKER OF MOTOR VEHICLES OR 

SALVAGE POOL OPERATOR 

NOTE: FAILURE TO ACCURATELY COMPLETE THIS FORM WILL CAUSE UNAVOIDABLE DELAY. 
PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY WITH INK. 
DO NOT SUBMIT THIS APPLICATION WITHOUT YOUR SURETY BOND AND THE REQUIRED FEE. 

PARTNERSHIP (g'CoRPORATION 

D ORIGINAL 

B'RENEWAL 

9 
~~TDOO~------------------~----------Ww~---j~~~------j 

10 
r-------------------------------------~----------------~--------~------------------~ 

11 THE DIMENSIONS OF THE PROPERTY ON WHICH THE BUSINESS IS LOCATED ARE "-/I h,_ At:.LteS'ft. X _____ ft. 

12 

13 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--~~=-------~ru~----------~ 

14 // //s-/7o 

15 

16 

~--~~~~~~~--~~Ld~~~------------------------------------L____----------------~ 

NAME 

SIGNA 

CITY 0 COUNTY OF ---------- HAS: 

A) APPROVED THE APPLICANT AS BEING SUITABLE TO ESTABLISH, MAINTAIN OR OPERATE A WRECKING YARD 
OR BUSINESS (ORIGINAL APPLICATIONS ONLY). 

B) DETERMINED THAT THE LOCATION OR PROPOSED LOCATION MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS FOR LOCATION 
UNDER OREGON REVISED STATUTE 822.110. 

C) DETERMINED THAT THE LOCATION DOES NOT VIOLATE ANY PROHIBITION UNDER OREGON REVISED 
STATUTE 822. 135. 

D) APPROVED THE LOCATION AND DETERMINED THAT THE LOCATION COMPLIES WITH ANY REGULATIONS 
ADOPTED BY THE JURISDICTION UNDER OREGON REVISED STATUTE 822.140. 

I ALSO CERTIFY THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS APPLICATION AND AS EVIDENCE OF SUCH AUTHORITY DO 
AFFIX HEREON THE SEAL OR STAMP OF THE CITY OR COUNTY. 

IIFEE: $54.00 II 

SUBMIT APPLICATION AND SURETY 
BOND, WITH ALL REQUIRED FEES 

AND SIGNATURES TO: 

BUSINESS REGULATION SECTION 
1905 LANA AVE., NE 

SALEM, OR 97314·2350 



----------- ------------

BOND NUMBER 
'' .. SURETY BOND 805706 

FAILURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM WILL CAUSE UNAVOIDABLE DELAY. 

LET IT BE KNOWN: 

THAT----------------~~~~~~~~~~rumD~m~~~------------------------------

WITH ADDITIONAL PLACES OF BUSINESS 

CONTRACTORS BONDING AND INSURANCE COMPANY 
STATE OF OREGON, AS PRINCIPAL(S), AND 

901 SE Oak, Suite 108 Portland, Or 97214 
(ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE) 

232-4000 
TELEPHONE NUMBER 

A CORPORATION ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER AND BY VIRTUE OF THE LAWS OF THE STATE 
AND AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT A SURETY BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF OREGON, AS SURETY, ARE HELD AND FIRMLY 
BOUND UNTO THE STATE OF OREGON IN THE PENAL SUM OF $2,000 FOR THE PAYMENT OF WHICH WE HEREBY BIND 

OUR RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGN, JOINTLY AND FIRMLY BY THESE PRESENTS. 

A CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, WHEN THE ABOVE NAMED PRINCIPAL HAS BEEN ISSUED A CERTIFICATE 
TO CONDUCT, IN THIS STATE, A BUSINESS WRECKING, DISMANTLING AND SUBSTANTIALLY ALTERING THE FORM OF 
VEH SAID PRINCIPAL SHALL CONDUCT SUCH BUSINESS WITHOUT FRAUD OR FRAUDULENT REPRESENTATION, AND 
WITHOUT VIOLATION OF ANY OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE OREGON VEHICLE CODE SPECIFIED IN ORS 822.120(2) THEN AND 
IN THAT EVENT THIS OBLIGATION TO BE VOID, OTHERWISE TO REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT UNLESS CANCELED 
PURSUANT TO ORS 743.755. 

THIS BOND IS EFFECTIVE January 1 

--ANY ALTERATION VOIDS THIS BOND--

(
BOND MUST EXPIRE ON THE ) 
LAST DAY OF THE MONTH. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE SAID PRINCIPAL AND SAID SURETY HAVE EACH CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TO BE EXECUTED BY 
ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR REPRESENTATIVES AND THE SURETY CORPORATE SEAL TO BE HEREUNTO AFFIXED 
THIS 5th DAYOF 19_91 

Attorney-in-Fact 

AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST COMPLETE THIS SECTION: 

IN THE EVENT A PROBLEM ARISES CONCERNING THIS BOND, CONTACT: 

NAME TELEPHONE NUMBER 

CBIC 232-4000' 
ADDRESS 

PO Box 12053 
CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 

Portland, Or 97212 

APPROVED BY ATIORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE 




